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Misston Statement
1o be the North American leader
in providing caring,
Personal Response and Support
Services, to our customers
who are primarily ai-risk
seniors, focusing on quality,
imnovation and growth.

Visit Us at: www.lifelinesys.com




To Our Shareholders:

Lifeline has made significant investments over the past four years executing a long-term
strategy aimed at reinventing the Company and its business model. Although we are still in the

early stages of harvesting this investment, our corporate performance has been improving year
by year. This trend continued in 2002. Lifeline produced solid gains in service revenue and
margin, which yielded record revenues and profitability, while nearly doubling our cash balance
and eliminating our debt. They also enabled us to begin executing on Lifeline’s new market
development strategies and to continue improving our business processes and developing the

skills of our people.

As we begin 2003, Lifeline is positioned to continue
improving its profitability while maintaining its tradition
of high quality, caring service for its subscribers.
Demographics and trends in health care delivery are
working in our favor. The population of the United States
and Canada, the markets we serve, is aging. Elders are
living longer and spending more of their later years at
home or as residents within a growing array of senior
living environments such as assisted and independent
living facilities. Baby boomers are playing a more active
role in helping their parents negotiate the challenges of
aging and the obstacles to obtaining affordable, quality
health care.

These dynamics create an environment of opportunity for
Lifeline. We translated this opportunity into record
financial performance in 2002. Total revenues increased
9% to $105 million from $97 million in 2001. Service
revenues rose 14% to $78 million from $68 million last
year. This top-line growth reflected a 6% increase in
subscribers served by Lifeline’s call monitoring platforms,
to 366,000 from 344,000 last year. In addition, our hospital
and senior living partners provided on-site monitoring
services for a large number of subscribers and residents
who use Lifeline equipment.

Net income for 2002 increased 28% to $8.1 million, or $1.21
per share, from $6.3 million, or $0.98 per share in 2001.
Operating cash flow improved substantially in 2002, rising
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to $21 million from $11 million last year. Day’s sales outstanding Earnings per Share
e declined to 38 days at year-end 2002 from 46 days a year earlier.
’ Lifeline concluded 2002 with cash and cash equivalents totaling
$11.1 million, compared with $5.7 million at year-end 2001. We were
debt free at the end of 2002, compared with capital lease and debt
obligations of $7.2 million a year ago. /

Service margin improvement: $051 |,
We continue to evolve Lifeline’s business model from its legacy <«
focus on hardware sales toward profitable, recurring service

revenue. In pursuing this goal over the past four years, one primary x

strategic initiative has been to improve the profitability of our 1

service business. In 2002, service gross margins increased to 44% of ‘
2000 2001 2802

*Excludes after tax impact of $1.6 million
continuing success in implementing process improvements and as a result of one time charge.

service revenues from 39% in 2001. These results reflect our

productivity and pricing initiatives, as well as faster response times
and greater efficiency in subscriber enrollment.

The profitability of our service business also reflects the significant

capital investments we have made in strengthening our core
P & & Service Gross Margin

. ) ™ . 44%

platform in the United States and CareMaster™ platform in Canada, ﬁ

physical assets. These assets, the CareSystem call monitoring

39%
36% ]

technologies today represent a state-of-the-art foundation that P

drive our call center operations. As a result of our investments, these

differentiates Lifeline from its competitors and significantly benefits T o
the consumers it serves. i 1

Service excellence:
At Lifeline, achieving service excellence means having well-trained

people who are continuously available to serve our subscribers with

speed, competence and caring. Every day during 2002, Lifeline
quickly responded to as many as 25,000 inbound calls from : : |
subscribers. Each one of these subscribers is treated with respect and 2000 2001 2002
professionalism by a well-trained, caring Lifeline employee who

uses proven protocols in responding to their needs.

At the same time, we worked to expand the menu of services that Lifeline provides. An

= example is the Lifeline CareAlert Service™, which will automatically notify a third party such
as a physician, family member or home health care provider in the event of an unforeseen
incident at a subscriber’s home. The Lifeline CareAlert Service adds value by expanding the
subscriber’s immediate notification network far beyond the core group of first responders and ’

- immediate family.

- The enhanced CareSystem platform also enabled us to expand the services we provide our
distribution channels. These include community hospitals, local chapters of the American Red
il Cross and a wide range of homecare and senior-service agencies such as the Visiting Nurses
- Association of America. In 2002, we introduced three new services that will automate Lifeline
subscriber enrollment, management and marketing processes for our hospital partners.
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CarePartners Connect™

, the first of these new services, provides the program manager with
real-time management information via secure Web-based access to Lifeline’s CareSystem
database. Future enhancements to CarePartners Connect will support automated subscriber
enrollment and care plan changes. The second new service, TelConnect™, allows the Lifeline
program to deactivate subscribers or swap a subscriber’s Lifeline communicator assignment via
touch-tone phone. Third, our new Web-based marketing initiative, CarePartners Online™, makes
it easier for our hospital partners to create their own market development programs by

downloading Lifeline marketing materials from the Internet.

We positioned Lifeline for further improvements in customer service performance by breaking
ground on our second major U.S. call center in 2002. Representing an investment of more than
$4 million, this new facility is expected to be fully operational in the third quarter of 2003. It is
designed to be redundant with our existing U.S. call center and thus capable of supporting
Lifeline’s full operations under almost any kind of disaster scenario. The new U.S. call center
will also provide additional capacity for our marketing and customer service operations.

Our profitable and growing Canadian subsidiary completed two major infrastructure
investments in 2002. A new CareMaster subscriber monitoring platform in our Toronto call
center went operational in the first quarter of 2002, and we opened our second Canadian call
center in Montreal shortly thereafter. These facilities are designed to back up each other. The
Montreal call center will also enable us to expand our penetration into the Province of Quebec
and provide additional capacity to support the rest of Canada.

Revenue growth:

We are as committed to continuous improvement in market development as we are to
improving service margin and customer service. In addition to launching the Lifeline CareAlert
Service in 2002, we introduced Lifeline Healthcare Directives™, which provides the hospital with
a subscriber’s healthcare proxy, living will and end-of-life protocol instructions in the event that
the subscriber is hospitalized in an emergency.

We are working on long-term initiatives aimed at attracting new subscribers. Chief among these
is the development of new direct marketing competencies within the Lifeline organization. We
also stepped up our commitment to clinical marketing and indication selling to healthcare
professionals in hospitals and local communities. Our goal is to leverage the skills of our sales
force and the messages delivered by our direct marketing campaigns. In this way, we will
accelerate the flow of subscriber leads from our traditional referral sources such as hospital
discharge planners and case managers, as well as from new referral sources. To support this
effort, in late 2002 we began training our U.S. sales force in clinical marketing, focusing initially
on cardiovascular disease and congestive heart failure indications.

Another major Lifeline initiative is aimed at the numerous small to mid-sized senior living
facilities that have been constructed across the country. The majority of these facilities have pull-
cord emergency call systems, which we believe are far less effective than Lifeline’s wireless
technology. This retrofit potential, as well as new facilities construction, represents a significant
hardware opportunity for Lifeline. We are tapping this potential by assembling a specialized
Senior Living sales force and dedicating management leadership to this market niche.




Looking ahead:

Our plan for 2003 targets continued improvement in service margin as well as market
development. We will be working to launch our first nationwide co-branded direct marketing
campaign for and with our hospital partners. In addition, we plan to continue to refine the
competencies of our 1-800-LIFELINE telemarketing group in managing inbound consumer calls.

Our growth plans will also focus more sharply on opportunities in home care and on outreach
to the increasingly important baby boomer population. In home care, for example, we
established a preferred provider relationship in 2002 with the Visiting Nurses Association of
America, and during 2003 we will be designing and implementing programs to grow this
national account. Our focus on baby boomers includes the exploration of promising new
distribution channels such as employer-sponsored work/life solutions.

In 2002 we stopped outsourcing our hardware assembly, and smoothly and successfully moved
this operation in-house. We expect this will allow us to realize higher inventory turns over time
and gain greater control over both cost and quality throughout our supply chain.

Another 2003 objective is to improve the profitability of serving an estimated 15% of Lifeline’s
subscribers who are covered by state Medicaid programs. We intend to improve subscriber
service and speed payments by eliminating process complexity.

Lifeline’s long-term prospects have never been better. We have only begun to tap the full
potential of a market that extends across the United States and Canada. Our business model is
based on a recurring revenue streamn composed of predominately private-pay subscribers. We
know how to integrate caring and technology to provide reassurance and emergency support to
a growing segment of our population. And our recent capital investments have reduced our cost
structure while improving our operational performance.

This is an unusual and stressful time for corporate America, but Lifeline is well prepared for this
environment. In addition to being debt free with an enviable balance sheet and a record of real
and sustainable profitability, we have been committed to sound corporate governance since
Lifeline’s inception nearly 30 years ago. We have also created a corporate culture that inspires a
shared commitment to ethical and caring behavior throughout the organization.

These guiding principles will endure. The Company’s board of directors has been strengthened
over the past several months with the addition of S. Ward Casscells, III, M.D. and Ellen Feingold
as directors. Together, they bring Lifeline significant experience and achievement in the
treatment of heart disease, as well as in senior living and elder care.

Cn behalf of the board and the more than 800 members of our superb Lifeline team, we offer
you our heartfelt thanks for your loyalty and trust.

Sincerely,
Ronald Feinstein L. Dennis Shapiro

President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board
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PART I

ITEM 1. Business

Gen eral

Lifeline Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) -
to ite qubacribers, primarily elderly inc:
physically challenged individuals. These subscribers communitate veae. )
products it designs, assembles and markets, consisting principally of a communicator which connects
to the telephone line in the subscriber’s home and a personal help button, which is worn or carried by
the individual subscriber and which, when activated, initiates a telephone call from the subscriber’s
communicator to the Company’s central monitoring facilities. The Company believes it is a major
provider of these services since as of December 31, 2002 it was monitoring approximately 366,000
subscribers on its own central monitoring call center platforms with approximately an additional
150,000 subscribers monitored by customers on platforms at customer locations.

Business Developments

During 2002, the Company paid in cash approximately $2.0 million for acquisitions of
distributors of the Company’s personal response products and services. The results of the acquired
businesses have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the dates of
acquisition with no material effect on the Company’s results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The Company anticipates finalizing the purchase accounting associated with
these acquisitions in connection with its financial results for the first quarter of 2003 and does not
anticipate any material effect to its balance sheet or results of operations.

After a brief period during which the Company outsourced all manufacturing and assembly
operations, the Company is once again supporting a manufacturing site at its corporate location to
assemble its personal response equipment. The Company believes that the decision to support a
manufacturing assembly process for its equipment will result in improved cost containment and high
quality.

The Company recently signed a ten-year lease for a second U.S. call center. The Company
expects to occupy the new facility in 2003. The new call center is a 29,000 square foot facility in
Framingham, Massachusetts. Average annual base rental payments under the lease approximate
$246,000. The lease contains renewal options at the end of the initial lease term.

Industry Segments

The Company operates in one industry segment. Its operations consist of providing personal
response services associated with those products it designs, assembles and markets. Foreign
revenues, from Canada, comprised less than 10% of the Company’s total revenues in 2002, and

tangible assets in foreign countries (Canada) represent less than 10% of the Company’s total assets as
of December 31, 2002.




The Lifeline Service

The Company’s principal offering, called LIF ELINE®, consists of a monitoring service utilizing
equipment designed, assembled and marketed by the Company. The Company’s monitoring service
is a personal response service which provides 24-hour monitoring and personalized support to elderly
individuals with medical or age-related conditions and to physically challenged individuals
throughout the United States and Canada. Through use of the LIFELINE service, individuals in need
of help are able to signal monitoring personnel in one of the Company’s response centers. These
trained people identify the nature and extent of the subscriber’s particular need and manage the
situation by notifying the subscriber’s friends, neighbors, and/or emergency personnel, as set forth in
a predetermined protocol established by the Company. In many situations, this service can also
provide social support for elderly individuals who live alone since the Company’s trained monitoring
personnel are often contacted through the monitoring equipment by these elders, who utilize the
Lifeline service as an important social connection.

The equipment used for the LIFELINE service includes a communicator, which connects to the
telephone line in the subscriber’s home, and a personal help button, which is worn or carried by the
individual subscriber. When pressed, the personal help button sends a radio signal to the
communicator; the communicator automatically dials a response center where monitoring personnel
answer the call and dispatch the designated responders, typically a friend or relative of the subscriber
and/or emergency service, when help is needed. Most of the time, however, subscribers’ calls do not
require Lifeline to dispatch a responder but instead require Lifeline to provide reassurance and
support as a result of the subscriber’s isolation or loneliness.

The Company’s primary monitoring center in Framingham, Massachusetts is supported by its
proprietary CareSystem call center platform. This call center platform is a specially designed
computer and telecommunications hardware and software system used to identify, track and respond
to subscriber calls. CareSystem receives incoming signals from subscribers’ communicators, matches
and retrieves the appropriate subscriber data records from a central database, and routes both the call
and the data record to monitoring personnel in the Lifeline Call Center. The second U.S. call center
currently under development, also in Framingham, will have the capability of providing call center
redundancy by utilizing the CareSystem platform.

To provide its services, the Company develops relationships with hospitals or other healthcare
providers (“customers”) who establish a Lifeline program generally for the benefit of at-risk
individuals in their coverage area (“subscribers™) or with respect to senior living facilities in their
coverage area, for the benefit of their residents. The type of Lifeline program established by the
customer determines the type of relationship that the Company has with these customers. The
programs offered by Lifeline consist of the following:

a. Site monitored program —customers offering site-monitored programs locally provide
their own monitoring services to a subscriber by purchasing monitoring equipment from
the Company. Subscribers in need of help are able to signal monitoring personnel at the
customer’s facility. With this type of Lifeline program the customer purchases monitoring
equipment (installed at the customer’s facility) and home communicators (installed in the
subscribers’ homes) from the Company and maintains all responsibilities for the operation
of the program. The customer bills its subscribers for the monitoring services and home
communicators it is providing.
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b. Lifeline Monitoring Services (“LMS”) — with this type of Lifeline program, the customer
outsources the monitoring activity to a Lifeline Call Center to service their subscribers but
generally retains other responsibilities for the operation of the program. The customer
purchases from the Company the home communicators it provides to its subscribers. The
Compeny charges the customer a monthly per-subscriber fee for the monitoring service
thet the Company is providing. The sale by the Company to the customer of the home
communicators is not tied to the monitoring agreement as the customer makes the
determination when to purchase home communicators. The customer typically purchases
heme communicators to place in its own inventory and then disperses the communicators
as it acquires subscribers who need the service. The customer is under no contract that
would require it to purchase product. The customer bills the subscriber for the home
comimunicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring services
provided by the Company.

c. Preduct and Service Fee (“PSF”) — this Lifeline program is designed for customers who
want a convenient way to offer the Lifeline service but do not have the funds available to
purchase home communicators. Rather than purchasing home communicators, the
customer orders home communicators as needed and pays Lifeline a monthly service fee
for communicators in their possession. The customer also outsources the monitoring
activity to a Lifeline Call Center to service their subscribers but generally retains other
responsibilities for the operation of the program. The customer bills the subscriber for the
home communicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring
services provided by the Company. The Company charges the customer a monthly per-
subscriber fee for the monitoring service that the Company is providing.

d. Business Management Services (“BMS”) — for customers who choose this type of Lifeline
program, the Company provides a comprehensive set of monitoring and business support
services that effectively reduce the customer’s program management and administrative
responsibilities associated with offering the Lifeline service. The program is designed to
meet the needs of customers that would like to make a Lifeline program available to
individuals in their coverage area but which do not have the resources or the desire to

: themselves provide all the activities related to providing the Lifeline service in their

" community, The Company handles day-to-day administrative tasks for the Lifeline

service including managing referrals, inquiries, service order intake, service installation,

ongoing customer service and billing to support the needs of the customer. The Company
directly provides its customers’ subscribers with a comprehensive service offering, which
includes monitoring and the use of Company-owned home communicators for a single
fee, anc the Company bills the subscriber on a monthly basis for this service. The BMS
service does not invelve the sale by the Company of products teo its customers or to
subscrisers.

Customers

The Company primarily markets its services and products to hospitals, senior living facilities and
other service providers in a variety of healthcare related fields. Hospitals, however, have historically
been the Company’s primary market. The Company believes that hospitals offer Lifeline’s services
and products to capiure revenues from the sale of the service for the communities they serve, enhance
community relaticns, and/or contain healthcare costs by facilitating early discharge from the hospital,

4.
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PARTI

ITEM 1. Business

General

Lifeline Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) provides 24-hour personal response monitoring services
to its subscribers, primarily elderly individuals with medical or age-related conditions as well as
physically challenged individuals. These subscribers communicate with the Company through
products it designs, assembles and markets, consisting principally of a communicator which connects
to the telephone line in the subscriber’s home and a personal help button, which is worn or carried by
the individual subscriber and which, when activated, initiates a telephone call from the subscriber’s
communicator to the Company’s central monitoring facilities. The Company believes it is a major
provider of these services since as of December 31, 2002 it was monitoring approximately 366,000
subscribers on its own central monitoring call center platforms with approximately an additional
150,000 subscribers monitored by customers on platforms at customer locations.

Business Developments

During 2002, the Company paid in cash approximately $2.0 million for acquisitions of
distributors of the Company’s personal response products and services. The results of the acquired
businesses have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the dates of
acquisition with no material effect on the Company’s results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The Company anticipates finalizing the purchase accounting associated with
these acquisitions in connection with its financial results for the first quarter of 2003 and does not
anticipate any material effect to its balance sheet or results of operations.

After a brief period during which the Company outsourced all manufacturing and assembly
operations, the Company is once again supporting a manufacturing site at its corporate location to
assemble its personal response equipment. The Company believes that the decision to support a -
manufacturing assembly process for its equipment will result in improved cost containment and high

quality.

The Company recently signed a ten-year lease for a second U.S. call center. The Company
expects to occupy the new facility in 2003. The new call center is a 29,000 square foot facility in
Framingham, Massachusetts. Average annual base rental payments under the lease approximate
$246,000. The lease contains renewal options at the end of the initial lease term.

Industry Segments

1 The Company operates in one industry segment. Its operations consist of providing persohal
response services associated with those products it designs, assembles and markets. Foreign

. Tevenues, from Canada, comprised less than 10% of the Company’s total revenues in 2002, and
“tangible asset§ in foreign countries (Canada) represent less than 10% of the Company s total assets as
of December 31, 2002. -




The Lifeline Service

The Company’s principal offering, called LIFELINE®, consists of a monitoring service utilizing
equipment designed, assembled and marketed by the Company. The Company’s monitoring service
is a personal response service which provides 24-hour monitoring and personalized support tc elderly
individuals with medical or age-related conditions and to physically challenged individuals
throughout the United States and Canada. Through use of the LIFELINE service, individuals in need
of help are able to signal monitoring personnel in one of the Company s response centers. These
trained people identify the nature and extent of the subscriber’s particular need and manage the
situation by notifying the subscriber’s friends, neighbors, and/or emergency personnel, as set forth in
a predetermined protocol established by the Company. In many situations, this service can also
provide social support for elderly individuals who live alone since the Company’s trained monitoring
personnel are often contacted through the monitoring equipment by these elders, who utilize the
Lifeline service as an important social connection.

The equipment used for the LIFELINE service includes a communicator, which connects to the
telephone line in the subscriber’s home, and a personal help button, which is worn or carried by the
individual subscriber. When pressed, the personal help button sends a radio signal to the
communicator; the communicator automatically dials a response center where monitoring personnel
answer the call and dispatch the designated responders, typically a friend or relative of the subscriber
and/or emergency service, when help is needed. Most of the time, however, subscribers’ calls do not
require Lifeline to dispatch a responder but instead require Lifeline to provide reassurance and
support as a result of the subscriber’s isolation or loneliness.

The Company’s primary monitoring center in Framingham, Massachusetts is supported by its
proprietary CareSystem call center platform. This call center platform is a specially designed
jl - computer and telecommunications hardware and software system used to identify, track and respond
f * to subscriber calls. CareSystem receives incoming signals from subscribers’ communicators, matches
: 1 - and retrieves the appropriate subscriber data records from a central database, and routes both the call
\ and the data record to monitoring personnel in the Lifeline Call Center. The second U.S. call center
currently under development, also in Framingham, will have the capability of providing call center
- redundancy by utilizing the CareSystem platform.

% To provide its services, the Company develops relationships with hospitals or other healthcare
R providers (“customers’) whe establish a Lifeline program generally for the benefit of at-risk

~ 1 individuals in their coverage area (“subscribers™) or with respect to senior living facilities in their
coverage area, for the benefit of their residents. The type of Lifeline program established by the
cuélomer determines the type of relationship that the Company has with these customers. The
programs offered by Lifeline consist of the following:

a. Site monitored program —customers offering site-monitored programs locally provide
their own monitoring services to a subscriber by purchasing monitoring equipment from
: the Cgmpany. Subscribers in need of help are able to signal monitoring personnel at the
AN customer’s facility. With this type of Lifeline-program the customer purchases monitoring
* equipment (installed at the customer’s facility) and home communicators (installed in the
subscribers’ homes) from the Company and maintains all responsibilities for the operation
of the program. The customer bills its subscribers for the monitoring services and home

communicators it is providing.
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b. Lifeline Monitoring Services (“LMS”) — with this type of Lifeline program, the customer
outsources the monitoring activity to a Lifeline Call Center to service their subscribers but
generally retains other responsibilities for the operation of the program. The customer
purchases from the Company the home communicators it provides to its subscribers. The
Company charges the customer a monthly per-subscriber fee for the monitoring service
that the Company is providing. The sale by the Company to the customer of the home
communicators is not tied to the monitoring agreement as the customer makes the
determination when to purchase home communicators. The customer typically purchases
home communicators to place in its own inventory and then disperses the communicators
as it acquires subscribers who need the‘service. The customer is under no contract that
would require it to purchase product. The customer bills the subscriber for the home
communicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring services
provided by the Company.

c. Product and Service Fee (“PSF”) — this Lifeline program is designed for customers who
want a convenient way to offer the Lifeline service but do not have the funds available to
purchase home communicators. Rather than purchasing home communicators, the
customer orders home communicators as needed and pays Lifeline a monthly service fee
for communicators in their possession. The customer also outsources the monitoring
activity to a Lifeline Call Center to service their subscribers but generally retains other
responsibilities for the operation of the program. The customer bills the subscriber for the
home communicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring
services provided by the Company. The Company charges the customer a monthly per-

. ‘ subscriber fee for the monitoring service that the Company is providing.

d. Business Management Services (“BMS”) — for customers who choose this type of Lifeline
program, the Company provides a comprehensive set of monitoring and business support
services that effectively reduce the customer’s program management and administrative
responsibilities associated with offering the Lifeline service. The program is designed to
meet the needs of customers that would like to make a Lifeline program available to
individuals in their coverage area but which do not have the resources or the desire to
themselves provide all the activities related to providing the Lifeline service in their
community. The Company handles day-to-day administrative tasks for the Lifeline
service including managing referrals, inquiries, service order intake, service installation,
ongoing customer service and billing to support the needs of the customer. The Company
directly provides its customers’ subscribers with a comprehensive service offering, which
includes monitoring and the use of Company-owned home communicators for a single

. fee, and the Company bills the subscriber on a monthly basis for this service. The BMS
i service does not involve the sale by the Company of products to its custamers or to
4 subscribers.
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Y. 'The Compa%y primarily markets its services and products to hospitals, senior living facilities and
.. other;service providers in a variety of healthcare related fields. Hospitals, however, have historically
... been the Company’s primary market. The Company believes that hospitals offer Lifeline’s services

i1 " and products to capture revenues from the sale of the service for the communities they serve, enhance
{. . community relations, and/or contain healthcare costs by facilitating early discharge from the hospital,
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- decision makers; and the development of local referral networks of elder care and other service

‘Sates anu viarketing

The Company sells its services and products through its sales organization in the United States
and Canada.

In support of the sales effort, the Company’s sales professionals assist customers in developing a
marketing plan for the Lifeline program, monitoring progress against that plan, and providing training
to the customer’s staff on the management of their local Lifeline program. Programs’ marketing
plans typically address the introduction of Lifeline’s services to the prospective customer’s key

organizations to position the LIFELINE service as part of a continued care plan. Lifeline personnel
also provide continuing operational support, ongoing consultation, and program evaluations.

Source of Raw Materials

During the third quarter of 2002 the Company resumed supporting a manufacturing site at its
corporate location to assemble its personal response equipment and ended its outsourcing
arrangement with an outside electronics product manufacturer. The Company had historically
maintained in-house manufacturing assembly operations until 1999, when it entered into an
outsourcing arrangement with this manufacturer. The Company currently purchases components
from a variety of qualified vendors to provide maximum flexibility and ensure adequate sources of
supply. There can be no assurance however, that these vendors will not incur delays in providing the
necessary components for the Company as a result of process difficulties, component shortages or for
other reasons. Any such delay could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition, or results of operations.

Patents, Licenses and Trademarks

The Company considers its proprietary know-how with respect to the development and marketing
: of its personal response services and products to be a valuable asset. Due to rapid technological
" changes that characterize the industry, the Company believes that continued development of new
 services and products, the improvement of existing services and products, and patent and license
! protectmn are important in maintaining a competitive advantage.

. A]N:hbugh the Company owns numerous patents and patent applications in the United States and
Ezmadla ‘the Company does not believe that its business as a whole is or will be materially dependent
‘hipon the protection afforded by its patents.
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The Company s LIFELINE trademark and servicemark are registered at the United States Patent
amﬂ Trademark Office and in most states and some foreign countries. The Company also has a

. mumber pf other trademarks.
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i .':'Research and development efforts are geared towards enhancing and augmenting the Company’s

‘ jeroﬂuctSsand services. Research and development expenses were $1,642,000, $1,610,000, and

“$1 515 000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.




Because of the nature of the Company’s products, the Company endeavors to minimize the time
that elapses from the receipt of a purchase order to the date of delivery of the products. Accordingly,
the Company’s backlog as of the end of any period represents only a small portion of the Company’s
expected sales for the succeeding period and is not significant in understanding the Company’s
business. The Company does not believe that the industry in which it operates is seasonal.

Government Regulation

The Company’s products are registered with the Federal Communication Commission (“FCC”)
and comply with FCC regulations pertaining to radio frequency devices (Part 15) connected to the
telephone system (Part 68). The Company has als’é_w received registrations of equipment from
Canadian agencies. As new models are developed, they are submitted to appropriate agencies as
required.

The Company has registered its communicator products with the United States Food and Drug
Administration.

None of the Company’s business is subject to re-negotiation of profits or termination of contract
at the election of the government, nor is it impacted by any existing environmental laws.

Competition

The Company believes that it is a major provider of personal response services and products since
as of December 31, 2002 it was monitoring approximately 366,000 subscribers on its own central
monitoring call center platforms with approximately an additional 150,000 subscribers monitored by
customers on platforms at customer locations. Other companies offer services and products
competitive with those offered by the Company. These companies offer personal response services

- on a regional or national basis through both healthcare providers and directly to the subscribers
. themselves.

I The Company believes that the competitive factors its customers consider when choosing a

: © - personal response service are the high quality of service and product performance and reliability;

" customer support and service; price; and reputation and experience in the industry. The Company
believes it competes favorably with respect to these factors.

- : : Employees

i . As of February 28, 2003 the Company employed approximately 795 full-time and 85 part-time
. employees. None of the Company’s employees is represented by a collective bargaining unit, and the
Company believes its relations with its employees are good.




ITEM 2. Properties

The Company is party to a fifteen-year lease for an 84,000 square foot facility in Framingham,
Massachusetts for its corporate headquarters, including its U.S. based monitoring operations.
Average annual base rental payments under the lease approximate $941,000. The initial lease term
expires in 2013. The Company has two five-year renewal options contained within the lease.

The Company is party to a ten-year lease to occupy up to 29,000 square feet of a facility in
Framingham, Massachusetts for its second U.S. call center. Average annual base.rental payments
under the lease approximate $246,000. The initial lease term expires in 2012 and the Company has
two five-year renewal options contained within the lease.

The Company also leases facilities in other locations to support its corporate, field and Canadian
operations.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not party to any material litigation.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None
Executive Officers of the Registrant

. The following table sets forth certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company as
- of March 24, 2003:

Name . Position . Age
‘L. Dennis Shapiro Chairman of the Board 69

. |{Ronald Feinstein President, Chief Executive Officer
. and Director 56

- Denms M. Hurley Senior Vice President, Finance,

oAb Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer 56
Richanrd M. Reich Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer 56
! D(ma]ldl G. Strange Senior Vice President, Sales 56
i ﬂgﬂen R. Berezin Vice President, Human Resources 53
*Mark G. Beucler Vice President, Finance, Corporate Controller 37
iward M. Bolesky Senior Vice President, Customer Care : 57
sonard E. Wechsier ’ Vice President and President, Lifeline Canada 46
Bef‘ﬁreyA Stem ' Clerk 44

i, Demns Shap1r0 Chairman of the Board, has served the Company in-this capacity since 1978, and
at *vam@us times has served as President and Chief Financial Officer.




Ronald Feinstein became an employee of the Company in September 1992 and became Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Cfficer in August 1992. He was appointed President and Chief
Executive Officer in January 1993. Mr. Feinstein has served as a director of the Company since 1985.

Dennis M. Hurley is Senior Vice President, Finance; Chief Financial Officer; and Treasurer. He
joined the Company in March 1995 as Vice President, Finance; Chief Financial Officer; and Treasurer.

Richard M. Reich is Senior Vice President, Chief Information Officer. He became Vice President,

- Chief Information Officer in September 1969. He had been Vice President, Technology and Advanced
Services since August 1994. From June 1990 to August 1994, Mr. Reich had served as Vice President,
Product Planning and Development. Since joining the Company in April, 1986 he had held the position
of Vice President, Engineering.

Donald G. Strange is Senior Vice President, Sales. He was Vice President, Sales and Marketing from
December 1696 to June 2000. He joined the Company in February 1993 as Vice President, Sales.

Ellen R. Berezin joined the Company in March 2001 as Vice President, Human Resources. From
- July 1697 to March 2001, Ms. Berezin worked at Harvard Vanguard Medical Associates, a physician -
group practice based in Massachusetts, where she served as Vice President, Human Resources. From
November 1995 to June 1997, Ms. Berezin was Vice President of Healthsource Massachusetts, a New
Hampshire-based HMO.

Mark G. Beucler joined the Company in April 2002 as Vice President, Finance, Corporate Controller.
From August 2001 to March 2002 he was Interim Chief Financial Officer for Andover Consulting, LLP.
From September 2000 to August 2001 he was Senior Vice President, Corporate Controller for Thomson
Financial, a muitinational software, consulting and electronic publisher of financial information. Mr.
Beucler worked for Primark Corporation, a multinational software, consulting and electronic publisher of
financial information, where he most recently held the position of Corporate Controller, from June 1997
to September 2000 when Primark Corporation was acquired by Thomson Financial. From June 1988 to

i April 1995 Mr. Beucler worked for Deloitte & Touche LLP where he earned the position of audit

manager.

Edward M. Bolesky has been Senior Vice President, Customer Care since joining the Company in

~.|'May 2002. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Bolesky worked for 20 years at New England Business

-|: Service, Inc. (“NEBS”), an international direct marketing and manufacturing organization serving smail
‘| business customers with printed checks and forms, personalized apparel, retail and shipping supplies and
- payroll services. Mr. Bolesky held a variety of positions at NEBS, most recently as Senior Vice
fPrésﬁdent/President—NEBS Direct Marketing.

} }Leonard E. Wechsler is Vice President and President, Lifeline Systems, Canada. He joined the
ik (Company in July 1996 as President, Lifeline Systems Canada when the Company purchased CareTel, Inc.
- '?CareTe provided monitoring services similar to those offered by the Company.




PART I
ITEM S. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Quarterly Market Information and Related Matters

The Company's common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol "LIFE."
On February 28, 2003, the Company had 445 registered shareholders.

The table below reflects the high and low sales prices for 2002 and 2001.

. . L High Low
2002 First Quarter ) ' $ 2625 § 21.00
Second Quarter » 25.90 22.10
Third Quarter E 27.31 20.78
Fourth Quarter 23.00 18.75
2001 First Quarter . $§ 1644 § 1188
Second Quarter 20.10 14.19
Third Quarter 20.50 18.40
Fourth Quarter 23.93 18.35

During the periods presented, the Company has not paid or declared any cash dividends on its common
stock. While the payment of dividends is within the discretion of the Company's Board of Directors,
the Company presently expects to retain all of its earnings for use in financing the future growth

of the Company.




ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

(In thousands, except per share data)
OPERATING RESULTS

Total revenues

Income from operations
Income before income taxes
Net income

Net income per share, diluted

Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding

FINANCIAL POSITION |

Working capital
Total assets
I ong-term obligations”

Stockholders' equity

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$105,008  $96,560 - $81,489  §70,792  § 64,884
13,571 10,561 5,031 3,190 9,513
13,5;0 10,223 5,304 4,176 9,976
8,130 6,320 3,185 2,506 5,986
§1.21 $0.98 $0.51 $0.40 $0.95
6,725 6,481 6,223 6,299 6,309

December 31,

2002 2001 2009 1999 1998
$19,548  $15,018 $9,994  §$10,069  §$13,026
83,660 76,989 64,528 57,385 52,504
6 5,000 2,701 3,354 11
62,793 36,291

52,209 43,385 36,739

Sl % ! There were no cash dividends paid or declared during any of the periods presented.




ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of @pemttw}ms and Financial
Cendition

This and other reports, proxy statements, and other communications to stockholders, as well as oral
statements by the Company’s officers or its agents, may contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with respect to, among
other things, the Company’s future revenues, operating income, or earnings per share. Without limiting
the foregoing, the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” and similar expressions are 7
intended to identify forward-looking statements. There are a number of factors of which the Company is
aware that may cause the Company’s actual results to-vary materially from those forecast or projected in
any such forward-looking statement. These factors include, without limitation, those set forth below
under the caption “Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results.” The Company’s failure to
successfully address any of these factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future
results of operations.

2% &C b 1Y

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
2002 Compared with 2001

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased approximately 9% to $105.0 miilion,
from $96.6 million recorded in 2G01.

The Company’s focus on increasing service revenues continues to provide positive results as service
revenues increased by just over 14% to $78.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$68.2 million for the prior year and represents over 74% of the Company’s total 2002 revenues, compared
to 71% in 2001. The Company continues to experience effective yields on its pricing strategies and grew
its monitored subscriber base by approximately 6% to 366,000 subscribers at December 31, 2002 from
345,000 subscribers at December 31, 2001. The Company’s ability to sustain the current level of service
revenue growth depends on its ability to continue to make improvements in service delivery, expand the
market for its personal response services, convert community hospital programs to services provided by
the Company and increase its focus on referral development. The Company believes that the high quality

. of its services and its commitment to providing caring and rapid response to the at-risk elderly will be

factors in meeting this objective.

]

Nei product revenues decreased by 5% to $25.6 million for 2002, from $27.0 million in 2001. The

- ‘majority of the decrease for 2002 was the result of strong sales in 2001 of the Company’s site-monitoring

platform for those customers who perform their own monitoring at their local facilities, which

= tepresented approximately $2.8 million of total product sales during that year as compared to

approximately $1.4 million for 2002. The Company had been anticipating a decline in sales of its site-

;%ﬁmqmtqnng platform since it has a finite number of customers for this product. The Company also
‘believes that equipment sales may continue to remain flat or decline in periods subsequent to 2002 as it

“hag experienced litile ot no growth in sales of its home communicators since it began providing

fbseribers with the Lifeline service under its Business Management Services (“BMS”) program, which

1

m@ludes momtonng and the use of Company-owned home communicators for a single service fee.
1

During 2002, the Company launched its new Senior Living initiative, under which it will seek to develop
alliances with senior living facilities to provide them with a cost-effective and distinctive emergency call

‘ :'ﬂéysfcem to appeal to residents and their families. As a result of this initiative, the Company believes that

-11-




sales of residence response systems to these facilities may mitigate some of the otherwise expected
decline in product revenue in periods subsequent to 2002.

Finance and rental income, representing income earned from the Company’s portfolio of sales-type leases
remained consistent at $1.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. With the
Company’s focus on its service offerings it expects finance income to decline in future periods because
such income is directly related to product sales.

* Cost of services, as a percentage of service revenues, improved 5% to 56% for the year ended December
31, 2002 from 61% for the year ended December 31, 2001. On a dollar basis, cost of services increased
by approximately $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the prior year as a
result of the growth in the number of subscribers serviced under the Company’s BMS program.

However, the percentage improvement is directly in line with the Company’s goal of making its service
offerings more profitable through productlwty and pricing, faster response times, and improved efficiency
of subscriber enrollment.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142 “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” in January 2002, which requires, among other things, the discontinuance of
goodwill amortization. As a resuit, the Company did not record approximately $837,000 of goodwill
amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 which resulted in an additional 1%
improvement to service margins in 2002 as compared to 20C1.

For the year ended December 31, 2002 cost of product sales, as a percentage of net product sales, was

32% as compared to 33% in 2001. The improvement in 2002 is directly related to the significant amount
. of sales of the Company’s site-monitored platform in 2001 which has a cost that 1s higher as a percentage
of revenue than the cost of the Company’s home communicators. The Company believes that an increase
in sales for its senior living initiative in 2003 will result in a slight increase in cost of product sales, as a
percentage of net product sales in that year, as the emergency call system sold to seniocr living customers
also has a cost which is h1gher as a percentage of revenues than the cost of the Company $
communicators.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”™) as a percentage of total revenues were 36% for
the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 35% for the year ended December 31, 2001. Ona
dollar basis, SG&A expenditures increased $3.9 million to $37.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 from $33.9 million for the same period in 2001. The Company incurred increased costs associated
LW ,Mh its new senior living initiative which was launched in the beginning of 2002. It also experienced
: ‘start-up costs associated with new marketing and business initiatives coupled with information
technology costs associated with these initiatives. During 2002, the Company also experienced the
impact of increases in insurance and healthcare benefit costs as compared to 2001. Approximately $C.5
| e rmMnon of additional costs associated with the erroneous low-battery signals in some of the Company’s
; ’]i B persona]l help buttens (See Note ) were incurred in 2002 and charged to SG&A. Any additional costs
- W%S@ma&ed—wﬁh this issue will be charged to SG&A. The Company expects that SG&A expenses, as a
suiper¢entage of total revenues will remain relatively consistent in 2003 as compared to 2002 as it continues
.. with its business initiatives.

'Reééérch and development expenses represented 2% of total revenues in 2002 and 2001. Research and
deveﬂopment efforts are focused on ongoing product improvements and developments. The Company
@xpects to maintain these expenses, as a percentage of total revenues, at a relatively consistent level.

-12-




The Company’s effective tax rate was 40% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 38%
for the same period in 2001. The lower effective tax rate in 2001 was due to the benefit of recording a
previously disclosed tax credit earned under a Tax Increment Finance (“TIF”) agreement with the town of
Framingham, Massachusetts. The Company believes it will continue to receive additional ongoing tax
credits under the TIF agreement during the remaining years of its corporate headquarters lease, which
should allow it to maintain an effective tax rate of approximately 40%.

The Company has recently been audited by Revenue Canada asserting deficiencies in goods and services .. -
tax and sales tax for the Company's 1993 to 1999 tax years. On March 26, 2002, the Company received a
proposed tax assessment (which included penalties and interest) of CAN$1,050,000 (approximately
US$668,000 based on current exchange rates at Decemiber 31, 2002). In October 2002, the Company
received a reduced assessment of CAN$523,000 (approximately US$333,000 based on current exchange
rates at December 31, 2002), which the Company paid. Approximately CAN$94,000 (approximately
US$62,000 based on current exchange rates at February 28, 2003) of this assessment has been recovered
from customers. The Company has filed an objection to the re-assessment that may resuit in a further
reduction. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in its objection.

2001 Compared with 2000

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 were $96.6 million, an increase of 18% compared
with the $81.5 million recorded in 2000.

Service revenues increased by 21% tc $68.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to
$56.2 miilion for the prior year. Service revenues comprised 71% of the Company’s total 2001 revenues,
compared to 69% in 2000. This growth was a result of a variety of factors. The Company introduced a
price increase for its monitoring services in 2001 that resulted in higher average revenue per subscriber in
2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in service revenues and subscribers was also due in part to the
acquisition of certain assets of SOS Industries, Inc. Overall, the Company achieved a 10% increase in its
monitored subscriber base, of which approximately 9,500 subscribers were the result of the SOS
acquisition. The Company was monitoring approximately 345,600 subscribers at the end of the year as
compared to 313,000 subscribers monitored at December 31, 2000. The Company believes that the
growth in the number of subscribers in 2001 was negatively impacted by the previously disclosed battery-
related issue in some of its personal help buttons.

Thei service recovery efforts undertaken by the Company to resolve the issues it faced in the second half

| -of 1999 that impacted its service revenue growth during 2000 resulted in significant service

(. L impmvemems in 2001 which enabled the Company to put its focus back on service revenue growth in

, _2@@1 These servlce recovery efforts mcluded mcreasmg call center staffing and trammg to improve

;'depamnems and increasing information technology resources to facilitate the resolution -of technical
ESS‘&JCS that may occur wnth the CareSystem platform.

foduct revenues improved 13% to $27.0 million for 2001, from $23.9 million in 2000. The majority
oflthe increase in 2001 was the result of the launch of a newly. developed site-monitoring platform for
”‘sp customers who perform their own monitoring at their local facilities.

%*mance and rental income, representing income earned from the Company’s portfolio of sales-type
leasﬁs declined 4% to just under $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001.
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Cost of services, as a percentage of service revenues, was 61% for the year ended December 31, 2001 as
compared to 65% for the year ended December 31, 2000, an improvement of 4%. The improvement was
directly associated with the Company’s goal of making its service offerings more profitable and was
attributed to productivity improvements and effective pricing strategies. On a dollar basis, cost of
services increased $5.0 million over 2000, due to a variety of reasons. The Company incurred higher
amortization of goodwill along with associated operational costs in 2001 as a result of the purchase of
certain assets of SOS Industries, Inc. in April 2001 and the fuil year effect of the purchase of the Argus

. Emergency Medical Division of Microtec Enterprises, Inc. by the Company’s Canadian subsidiary, )
Lifeline Systems, Canada, in the third quarter of 2000. The growth in the number of subscribers serviced
under the Company’s BMS program resulted in an increase in depreciation of the cost of home
communicators provided to those subscribers served‘under this model and also contributed to the
increase. The Company also had higher amortization of intangible acquisition costs incurred pursuant to
provider agreements entered intc with its customers for monitoring and/or business support services the
Company provides under the terms of the agreement.

For the years ended December 31, 2001 cost of product sales, as a percentage of net product sales, was
33% as compared to 30% in 2000. Cost of sales was higher as a percentage of net product sales in 2601
due in part to sales of the Company’s new site monitored platform which has a cost that is higher as a
percentage of revenue than the cost of the Company’s home communicators. The Company also
experienced an increase in sales of its lower margin marketing accessories in 2001 as compared to 2000
as its customers resumed marketing and growing their Lifeline service.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A”) as a percentage of total revenues were 35% for
the year ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. The Company’s improved 2001 revenue performance and
its ability to control its SG&A expenses resulted in consistent SG&A percentages in 2001. The
Company’s increased expenditures were primarily attributable to sales and marketing initiatives in 2001
that the Company did not incur during 2000 and increased sales and management bonuses relating to the
2001 achievement of operating performance goals. In 2001, the Company also incurred tax advisory fees
associated with obtaining a Tax Increment Finance (“TIF”) agreement, noted below.

Research and development expenses represented 2% of total revenues in 2001 and 2000. Research and
‘development efforts are focused on ongoing product improvements and developments.

g ’ ‘The Company’s effective tax rate was 38% for 2001 as compared to 40% in 2000. The reduction in the

F ‘Company’s effective tax rate was due to a tax credit earned under a TIF agreement with the town of

I " “Framingham, Massachusetts, where the Company relocated in 1999. The Company believes it will
-"continue to receive additional ongoing tax credits under the TIF agreement during the 12 remaining years
| -7 of its corporate headquarters lease. Earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2001 was

: ‘pasitivefly impacted by this tax credit by approximately $0.03 per diluted share.

MQUIDHY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Dmmg the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company’s portfolio of cash and cash equivalents

mémeased $5.3 million to $11.0 million from $5.7 million at December 31,2001. The majority of the

mcrease is a direct result of cash provided by operating activities of $21.5 million and included

.. improvements in collections of its accounts receivable portfolio amounting to $1.4 million, where the

- Company experienced a decrease in its days sales outstanding (DSO) to 38 days at December 31, 2002
from 46 days at December 31, 2001 and an increase in its accounts payable and accrued expenses of $1.3
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million, primarily as a result of the timing of expenditures related to its business and marketing
initiatives. Proceeds from stock option and employee stock purchase plan option exercises of $1.9
million also contributed to the increase. During 2002, the Company took advantage of its overall
improvement in cash flow to pay off approximately $7.0 million in debt and outstanding capital lease
obligations, which offset some of the increase. The Company also purchased property and equipment of
$8.6 million and recorded approximately $3.0 million for acquisitions of distributors of the Company’s
personal response products and services. The Company also experienced a net inventory increase of
approximately $1.3 million as it fulfilled its obligation to purchase certain amounts of inventory in

-accordance-with. the termination provisions of its contract with-anoutside electronics product —— - -

manufacturer as well as for support of its manufacturing site at its corporate location to minimize the risk
of supply interruption as it completed the transition from outsourced manufacturing to internal
manufacturing. Beginning in 2003, the Company anticipates its inventory balance will begin to decline
as it completes a full year of manufacturing assembly functions at its corporate location.

As noted above, as of June 30, 2002, the Company paid off substantially all of its capital lease obligations
associated with existing Master Lease Agreements. The Company expects to finalize a new Master Lease
Agreement with its bank during 2003 for potential future capital purchases, but expects to have sufficient
operating cash flow in the near term for its budgeted capital purchases without the proceeds of this new
leasing facility.

In August 2002, the Company entered into a $15.0 million Revolving Credit Agreement. The agreement
has two components, the first of which is the ability to obtain a Revolving Credit Loan with an interest
rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The second component is the ability to obtain
a Revolving Credit Loan with an interest rate based on the lender’s prime interest rate. The Company has
the option to elect to convert any outstanding Revolving Credit Loan to a Revolving Credit Loan of the
other type. The agreement contains several covenants, including the Company maintaining certain levels
of financial performance. These financial covenants include a requirement for a current ratio of at least
1.5 to 1.0 and an operating cash flow to total debt service ratio of no less than 1.75 to 1.0. In addition,
there are certain negative covenants that include restrictions on the disposition of the Company’s assets,
restrictions on the Company’s capacity to obtain additional debt financing, and restrictions on its
investment portfolic. The agreement also requires the Company to pay a commitment fee calculated at
the rate of one quarter of one percent (1/4%) per annum on the average daily amount during each calendar
quarter or portion thereof until the Revolving Credit Loan Maturity Date by which the Total Commitment
minus the sum of the Maximum Drawing Amount and all Unpaid Reimbursement Obligations exceeds
the outstanding amount of Revolving Credit Loans during such calendar quarter. This Revolving Credit
Agreement matures in August 2005 and as of December 31, 2002 the Company did not have any debt

| outstanding under this line.
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The following summarizes the Company’s existing contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002 and
the effect such obligations are expected to have on its liquidity and cash flows in future periods:

(Dollars in thousands)

003 2004 005 2006 2007 Thereafter (1)
Contractual
Obligations (2): -
Capital leases $ 101 $§ o6 - - - -
Operating leases 1,418 1,548  $1,483 $1,382  $1,315 $7,964
Total Obligations $1,519 $1,554 $1,483 $1,382 $1,315 $7,964

(1) The majority of this amount represents contractual obligations on the Company’s corporate
facility lease through the year 2013 and its second U.S. call center through 2012,

(2) The table does not include the new line of credit, for up to $15 million, which matures in August
2005 and with respect to which no amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2002.

The Company expects that funding requirements for operations and in support of future growth are
expected to be met primarily from operating cash flow, existing cash and marketable securities and the
availability from time to time under its new line of credit. The Company expects these sources will be
sufficient to finance the operating cash needs of the Company through the next twelve months. This
includes the continued investment in its response center platform, the build out of its second U.S. call
monitoring facility, the requirements of its internally funded lease financing program and other
investments in support of its current business. The Company may from time to time consider potential
strategic acquisitions that may not be able to be financed through these sources. In such an event, the
Company may consider appropriate alternative financing vehicles.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. The preparation of these conselidated financial statements
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from

* those estimates. The Company has identified the following accounting policies as critical to
:;funderstanding the preparation of its consolidated financial statements and results of operations.

‘Allowance for doubtful accounts
e The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resultmg from the

"inability of its customers to make required payments. It estimates the allowance based upon historical

Q‘Mectmn expenence analysis of accounts receivable by aging categorles and customer crcd1t quahty It




Goodwill and intangible assets

Acquisition accounting requires extensive use of estimates and judgments to allocate the purchase price
to the fair market value of the assets and liabilities purchased. The cost of acquired companies is allocated
first to their identifiable assets based on estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. Costs are then
allocated to identifiable intangible assets and are generally amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable
assets acquired, net of liabilities assumed, is recorded as goodwill. The Company is currently in the
process of finalizing the acquisition accounting associated with the purchases of distributors of the

Company’s personal response products and services for the year ended December 31,2002 in connection

with its financial results for the first quarter of 2003, and is using accounting estimates and judgments
and the guidance of an independent valuation expert, of the fair value of these assets and liabilities. Any
cost in excess of net asset value (goodwill) will not be subject to amortization in accordance with SFAS
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which the Company adopted in January 2002.

The Company assesses the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles on an annual basis or, along
with long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. It uses an estimate of the future undiscounted net cash flows of the related asset or
asset grouping over the remaining life in measuring whether assets are recoverable. Based on the
Company’s expectation of future undiscounted net cash flows, an impairment loss would be recorded by
writing down the assets to their estimated realizable values. Any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations.

Inventories

The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost or market, as determined by the first-in, first-out
method. It regularly reviews inventory quantities on hand and records a provision for excess or obsolete
inventory based upon its estimated forecast of product demand. If actual future demand is less than the
projections made by management, then additional provisions may be required. In connection with the
termination of the Company’s manufacturing outsourcing arrangement in 2002, the Company increased
its inventory. The Company believes that substantially all of this additional inventory will be useable in
the ordinary course of business. -

Warranty

The Company’s products are generally under warranty against defects in material and workmanship. The
Company provides an accrual for estimated warranty costs at the time of sale of the related products
based upon historical return rates and repair costs at the time of the sale. A significant increase in product

. return rates could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations.

NEWLY ISSUED. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

| .+ In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 142,“Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets,” which was effective January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires, ameng other things,
the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard includes provisions for the

-;Jreclassnf" ation of certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of
‘ vl'e'mstmg té¢ognized intangibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill

» “an;ud the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of

. gomdwnﬂ SFAS 142 alsc required the Company to complete a transitional goodwill impairment test

Lmtthm six months from the date of adoption. The Company adopted SFAS 142 in January 2002, and as a

- f«esult did not record approximately $837,000 of goodwill amortization expense for the year ended

December 31, 2002 which resulted in an additional 1% improvement to service margins for 2002 as
‘ -17-




compared to 2001. The Company performed a transitional impairment test as required by SFAS 142 and
determined that there were no goodwill or intangible asset impairment losses that should be recognized.
The Company also determined that no reclassifications between goodwill and intangible assets were
required.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets." SFAS 144 supercedes FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." SFAS 144 applies to all long-lived

- assets (including discontinued-operations) and consequently amends Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 30, “Reporting Results of Operations - Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business." SFAS 144 was effective for financial stajements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS 144 in January 2002 and it did not have a significant
impact on its financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities.” SFAS 146 replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 “Liability Recognition for
Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.” SFAS 146 requires the
recognition of costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than at the
date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company does not believe that the adoption of
SFAS 146 wilil have a significant impact on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

On November 25, 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), "Guarantor's Accounting
and Disclesure for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others, an interpretation
of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34." FIN 45 clarifies
the requirements of FASB Statement No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies" (FAS 5), relating to the
guarantor's accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guarantees. FIN 45 requires
that, upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of the
- obligation. FIN 45 is applicable to guarantees that encompass guarantees based on changes in an
underlying asset, liability or equity security, guarantees that are made on behalf of another entity's
performance, certain indemnification agreements and indirect guarantees of the indebtedness of others.
The recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 are effective prospectively for guarantees issued
-or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for reporting periods
ending after December 15, 2002. The Company has made the required disclosures in the consolidated
~ :financial statements as of December 31, 2002 and is in the process of assessing the impact of FIN 45
' recognition and measurement provisions on its consolidated financial statements. The Company does not
-gbelﬁeve that the adoption of FIN 45 will have a significant impact on its financial statements.

:In Degember 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
s Transitlon and Disclosure.” SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
: wde alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value method of accounting
ﬁ@t.smck -based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements
SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures about the method of accounting for stock-based employee
1)'.‘30151;:11}1}énsautnon and the effect of the method used on reported financial results. SFAS 148 amends APB
@pmom No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting,” to require these disclosures in interim financial
£ i ormation. The Company continues to account for their stock-based employee compensation under

g, .;:i.’J“APB Opmlon 25, but has adopted the new disclosure requirements of SFAS 148 for the year ended
i Pﬁecember 31, 2002. Additional information related to the Company’s stock option plans is detailed in
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Note E of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CERTAIN FACTCRS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

The following important factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those
indicated by forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presented
elsewhere by management from time to time.

The Company recorded a non-recurring charge of approximately $2.7 million in the third quarter of 2000
for costs it expected to incur to address a previously disclosed battery-related issue, including anticipated
material and mailing costs for exchanging buttons, providing hospital programs with higher inventory
levels for the planned swap, and support for the cost of instailer visits to subscriber homes to replace the
button. The Company cannot be certain that the charge it recorded to address this issue will be sufficient
to cover all of its associated expenses. Any additional costs associated with this issue will be charged to
the Company’s operations in the ordinary course of business and could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

In 2002, the Company transitioned to once again supporting a manufacturing site at its corporate location
to assemble its personal response equipment. In connection with this, the Company ended its outsourcing
arrangement with an outside electronics product manufacturer. The Company has not supported a
manufacturing site for the past two years and as a result there can be no assurance that the transition from
outsourced manufacturing to internal manufacturing for its personal response equipment will not have a
material adverse effect on its results of operations. There also can be no assurance that the decision to
assemble its equipment will result in the anticipated cost containment or that the Company will maintain
cost of sales at a relatively consistent percentage of product sales. This could have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, or results of operations.

The Company’s results are partially dependent on its ability to develop services and products that keep
pace with continuing technological changes, evolving industry standards, changing subscriber preferences

. and new service and product introductions by the Company’s competitors. There can be no assurance that
= services, products or technologies developed by others will not render Lifeline’s services or products
_-. , noncompetitive or obsolete.
o, . : L : :
' The Company’s revenue growth is partially dependent on its ability to increase the number of subscribers
* I served by its monitoring centers by an amount which exceeds the number of subscribers lost. The

"Cbmpany’s ability to continue to increase service revenue is a key factor in its long-term growth, and
“there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to do so. The Company’s failure to increase

17" service revenue could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, or

results of operations.

Aﬂﬂhough the Company believes that it has constructed safeguards to protect against system failures, the

- *msmpmon of service at its monitoring facility, whether due to telephone or electrical failures,
ar’ﬁnquakes fire, weather or other similar events or for any other reason, could have a material adverse
ffect on the Company’s business, financial condition, or results of operations. In order to mitigate any
‘"potemml negative effect of a disruption of service, the Company recently signed a lease for a second U.S.
|call center, which is also located in Framingham, Massachusetts. The Company expects to occupy the

: : of occupation, that costs incurred in connection with the start-up of the new facility will not have a
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material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations, or that the
second call center, will not be affected by the same disruption that affects the corporate headquarters
facility. ‘

The Company believes that its future success will depend in large part upon its ability to attract and retain
key personnel. Although the Company believes it is making progress in retaining and recruiting well-
trained, highly capable people, there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to be successful
in attractmg and retaining such personnel.

The Company may expand its operations through the acquisition of additional businesses. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to identify, acquire or profitably manage additional
businesses or successfully integrate any acquired businesses into the Company without substantial
expenses, delays or other operational or financial problems. In addition, acquisitions may involve a
number of special risks, including diversion of management’s attention, failure to retain key acquired
personnel, unanticipated events, contingent liabilities and amortization of acquired intangible assets.
There can be no assurance that the acquired businesses, if any, will achieve anticipated revenues or
earnings.

Item 72 — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company has considered the provisions of Financial Reporting Release No. 48 "Disclosure of
Accounting Policies for Derivative Financial Instruments and Derivative Commodity Instruments, and
Disclosure of Quantitative and Qualitative Information about Market Risk Inherent in Derivative
Financial Instruments, Other Financial Instruments and Derivative Commodity Instruments." The
Company had no holdings of derivative financial or commodity-based instruments or other market risk
sensitive instruments entered into for trading purposes at December 31, 2002. As described in the
following paragraphs, the Company believes that it currently has no material exposure to interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risks in its instruments entered into for other than trading purposes.

Interest rates

The Company's balance sheet periodically includes an outstanding balance associated with a revolving
* credit facility that is subject to interest rate risk. The Company has the ability to obtain a Revolving

Credit Loan with an interest rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) or a Revolving

Credit Loan with an interest rate based on the lender’s prime interest rate. As a result of these factors, at
. . any. given time, a change in interest rates could result in either an increase or decrease in the Company's
. mterest expense. As of December 31, 2002, the Company did not have any outstanding balances
assomated with its credit facility and therefore its consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash ﬂows would not be affected by near-term changes in interest rates.

‘he: é@mpany';s earnings are affected by fluctuations in the value of the U.S. Dollar as compared to the

anadian Dollar, &s a result of the sale of its products and services in Canada and translation adjustments

asSécnated with the conversion of the Company's Canadian sub51d1ary into the reporting currency (U.S.

Doﬂﬂar) As such, the Company's exposure to changes in Canadian exchange rates could impact the

v C@mpanys consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. The Company performed a
. sensitivity analysis as of December 31, 2002 to assess the potential effect of a 10% increase or decrease
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in Canadian foreign exchange rates and concluded that short-term changes in Canadian exchange rates
should not materially affect the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. The Company's sensitivity analysis of the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in
such magnitude did not factor in a potential change in sales levels or local prices for its services/products
as a result of the currency fluctuations or otherwise.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Quarterly Results of Operations

(Unaudited) | "f;{ Quarter Ended

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Mar 31 Jun 30 Sep 30 Dec 31 Full Year

2002 Total revenues : $24859 $26,461 $26346 $27,342 $105,008
Gross profit 12,337 13,139 13,485 14,067 53,028
Net income 1,521 1,833 2,143 2,633 8,130
Net income per share, diluted $0.23 $0.27 $0.32 $0.39 $1.21

2001 Total revenues $21,564 $24,098 $25583 §$25,315 $ 96,560
Gross profit 10,196 11,411 12,204 12,244 46,055
Net income 1,118 1,368 1,978 1,856 6,320
Net income per share, diluted $0.18 $0.21 $0.30 $0.28 $0.98




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lifeline Systems, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1)
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Lifeline Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule -
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company's
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note A to the financial statements, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets." This standard was adopted January 1, 2002.

/s/PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 10, 2003




LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2002 and 2061
(Dollars in thousands)

2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,065 $.5,742
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful -
accounts of $329 in 2002 and $442 in 2001 ‘ 104167 12,021
Inventories , 5,457 4,129
Net investment in sales-type leases ' , 2,220 2,874
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,323 2,030
Deferred income taxes 1,602 1,436
Total current assets 33,083 28,232
Property and equipment, net " 31418 30,512
Net mvestment in sales-type leases 4,434 4337
Goodwill 7,226 7,226
Other intangible assets, net 7,365 6,615
Other assets 134 67
Total assets $ 83,660 $ 76,989
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,341 $1972
Accrued expenses 3,332 2,197
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 4,409 4282
Accrued income taxes 1,691 730
Deferred revenues 877 1,026
Current portion of capital lease obligation 95 1,080
Current portion of long term debt - 1,105
! Product warranty and other current liabilities 480 316
Accrued restructuring and other non-recurring charges - 310 506
3 Total current liabilities 13,535 13,214
‘ Deferred mcome taxes 7251 5,799
Long term portion of capital lease obligation 6 1,657
Long term debt, net of current portion - 3,343
Accrued restructuring and other non-recurring charges, long term - 617
Other non-current liabilities 75 150
Total liabilities 20,867 24,780
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
. Common stock, $0.02 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized,
7,101,227 shares issued in 2002 and 6,934,461 shares issued in 2001 142 139
P Additional paid-iq capital 23,869 22,000
(17" Retamed earnings 43,576 35,446
+ i Lessi Treasry stock at cost, 621,089 shares in 2002 and 2001 (4,556) (4,556)
Eh Notes receivable - officer v . - -+ (550)
;Accumulated other comprehensive loss-cumulative translation adjustment (238) (270)
Total stockholders' equity 62,793 52,209
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity : $ 83,660 $ 76,989

'The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OFINCOME
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
(In thousands except for per share data)
2002 2001 2000
Revenues '
Services . $78,041 $68,222 $56,169
Net product sales ST : : 25,587 26,956 -23,875
Finance and rental income " 1,370 1,382 1,445
Total revenues ";: 105,008 96,560 81,489
Costs and expenses
Cost of services 43,821 41,634 36,588
Cost of product sales '~ 8,159 8,871 7,233
Selling, general, and administrative 37,815 33,884 28,421
Research and development 1,642 1,610 1,515
Restructuring and other non-recurring charges - - 2,701
Total costs and expenses 91,437 85,999 76,458
Income from operations 13,571 10,561 5,031
QOther income {expense)
Interest income 114 162 646
- Interest expense (158) (449) (345)
j* Other income (expense) 23 (51) (28)
Total other income (expense), net 21 (338) 273
Income before income taxes 13,550 10,223 5,304
* Provision for income taxes 5,420 3,903 2,119
H Net income 8,130 6,320 3,185
‘ Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Fir Foreign currency translation adjustments 19 (128) (37)
] Comprehensive income $ 8,149 $ 6,192 $ 3,148
Nét mcome per weighted average share:
Basic $1.26 $1.03 $0.53
Diluted 1.21 0.98 0.51

.L ighted average shares:
K T e L

Basic

6,431 6,165 5,986
6,725 6,481
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LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000

(Dollars in thousands)
2002 2001 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 8,130 $ 6,320 $3,185
Adjustments to reconcile net ncome to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Write off of fixed assets and intangibles - 13 314
Non-cash portion of restructurmg charge - - 2,700
Depreciation and amortization o 9,973 9,035 7,404
Provision for bad debts 174 221 16
Deferred incone tax provision 3 1,286 1,452 107
Deferred compensation ' - 35 (23)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,376 (3,170} (15)
Inventories ' (1,328) (2,488) 964
Net investment in sales-type leases 557 771 75
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets (73) (350) 200
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,262 (726) 478
Accred payroll and payroll taxes 121 1,322 866
Income taxes payable 859 514 97
Accrued restructuring and other non-recurrng charges (813) (1,455) (778)
Net cash provided by operating activities 21,524 11,494 15,590
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment (8,581) (9,148) (4,772)
Business purchases and other (2,960) (5,297) (7,167)
Net cash used in mvesting activities (11,541) (14,445) (11,939)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments under long-term obligations (7,084) (1,597 (3,661)
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt - - 3,578 2,747
Proceeds from stock options exercised and
employee stock purchase plan 1,867 2,375 441
Issuance of note to officer - - (250)
Repayment of loan from officer 550 - 100
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (4,667) 4,356 (623)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,316 1,405 3,028
Effect of foreign exchange on cash 7 (80) (20)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,742 4417 1,415
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 11,065 $ 5,742 $4,417
Non-cash activity: .
Acquistion related charges 466 - 670
-+ Capitalleases - 1,516 365
Deferred compensation 5 335 231
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company

Lifeline Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) provides 24-hour personal response monitoring services
to its subscribers, primarily elderly individuals with medical or age-related conditions as well as
physically challenged individuals. The Company develops relationships with hospitals or other
healthcare providers (“customers”) who establish a Lifeline program for these individuals. With
a Lifeline Monitoring Services (“LMS”) program, the customer buys communicators from the
Company, outsources the monitoring activity to a Lifeline Call Center to service their subscribers
but generally retains other responsibilities for the operation of the program. A Product and
Service Fee (“PSF”) program is similar to the aforementioned LMS program, however rather
than purchasing home communicators, the customer pays the Company a monthly service fee for
communicators it receives from the Company. With a Business Management Services (“BMS”)
program, the Company provides a comprehensive set of monitoring and business support
services that effectively reduce the customer’s program management and administrative
responsibilities associated with offering the Lifeline service. All subscribers communicate with
the Company through products designed, assembled and marketed by the Company, consisting
principally of a communicator which connects to the telephone line in the subscriber’s home and
a personal help button, which is worn or carried by the individual subscriber and which, when
activated, initiates a telephone call from the subscriber’s communicator to either the Company’s
central monitoring facilities or a local community hospital.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lifeline Systems, Inc. and its
wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Company”). All significant inter-company balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
1 the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
The Company considers all securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less at the
.. date of acquisition to be cash equivalents.

i
|

S f Inventories
J Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, as determined by the first-in, first-out
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and
amortization on property and equipment is computed principally by the straight-line method over
the useful lives of the assets. Depreciation on leasehold improvements is computed principally by
the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or the.estimated useful lives of the

improvements. - . : e
Equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 7 years
Equipment provided to customers 5 years
Equipment under capital leases 3 to 7 years
Leasehold improvements 5to 15 years

When assets are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to income. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; betterments are capitalized.

Equipment Provided to Customers

In accordance with its BMS programs, the Company provides its customers’ subscribers with
home communicators as part of a unified service offering in which the Company bills the
subscriber on a monthiy basis for the monitoring and business support service and records
service revenue in the pericd earned. The cost of the home communicators provided to the
subscriber is recorded as an asset on the Company’s balance sheet and depreciation is computed
by the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 5 years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The
Company adopted SFAS 142 in January 2002, and accordingly ceased amortizing goodwill with
a net carrying value totaling approximately $7.2 million as of the date of adoption (See Note I).

The cost of acquired companies is allocated first to their identifiable assets based on estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition. Costs are then allocated to identifiable intangible assets
based on accounting estimates and judgments and the guidance of an independent valuation
expert and are generally amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable assets acquired, net of
liabilities assumed, is recorded as goodwill. The Company is currently in the process of finalizing
the purchase accounting associated with the purchases of distributors of the Company’s personal
response products and services for the year ended December 31, 2002 in connection with its
financial results for the first quarter of 2003. Any resulting goodwill will not be subject to

" amortization in accordance with SFAS 142.

B mbrh b i o e
i . LT . o R

i

Xi
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Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life. For the year ended December 31, 2002 the Company recorded approximately $0.7
million of intangible assets related to provider agreements whereby the Company agrees to pay
the customer a fee for the use of its referral sources and agrees to provide monitoring and/or
business support services to the customer under a LMS, PSF or BMS program in accordance
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)
with the terms of the agreement. The Company amortizes the acquisitions costs over the life of
the agreements, which is typically five years.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets :

The Company accounts for impairment of long-lived assets, including goodwill and other
intangible assets, in accordance with SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets" which the Company adopted in the first quarter of 2002. SFAS 144
supercedes FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
for Long Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." SFAS 144 applies to all long-lived assets (including
discontinued operations) and consequently amends Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30,
“Reporting Results of Operations - Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a
Business." The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets on an annual basis or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. It uses an estimate of the future undiscounted net cash flows of the related asset or
asset grouping over the remaining life in measuring whether assets are recoverable. Based on the
Company’s expectation of future undiscounted net cash flows, an impairment loss would be
recorded by writing down the assets to their estimated realizable values.

Product Warranty

The Company’s products are generally under warranty against defects in material and
workmanship. The Company provided an accrual during 2002 of approximately $0.2 miliion for
estimated warranty costs at the time of sale of the related products.

Revenue Recognition

Service revenues, associated primarily with providing monitoring services under the Company’s
LMS, PSF and BMS programs, are recognized in the period the service is provided. Incremental
external installation costs related to the installation of the Company’s products that exceed
installation revenue generated by the Company are expensed in the period incurred. The

. Company reviews its installation revenue periodically, and in situations where installation

L revenue exceeds incremental external installation costs that revenue is recognized over the

! : estimated period of which an average subscriber continues to use the Lifeline service.

Deferred service revenue represents billings to customers for annual service contracts for which
revenue has not been recognized because the service has not yet been provided. Service revenues
are then recognized ratably over the contractual pericd. Revenues from the sale of personal
response products are recognized upon shipment, when the risk of loss transfers. Finance income
" attributable to sales-type lease contracts is initially recorded as unearned income and
ubsequently recognized under the interest method over the term of the leases.

oreign CurrenZy Translation

The financial statements of the Company’s subsidiary outside the United States are generally
measured using the local currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of this

~ .subsidiary are translated at the rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. The resulting

j translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss which is a separate
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign Currency Translation (continued)

component of stockholders’ equity. Income and expense items are translated at average monthly
rates of exchange. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions of this subsidiary are
included in net income. -

Income Taxes -

The Company accounts for income taxes under a liability approach. Under this approach,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on temporary differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the
year in which the temporary differences are expected to reverse.

Net Income Per Common Share

Net income per basic common share is computed by dividing income available to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Net
income per diluted common share is computed based on the weighted-average number of
common and dilutive commeon equivalent shares cutstanding during each period. Common
equivalent shares consist of stock options calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings per Share.”

At December 31, 2002, the Company has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note E. The Company accounted for those plans using the intrinsic
valued based method described in Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretations. No stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net inccme for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underiying common stock on the date of grant. The Company has also adopted the
disclosure requirements of FASB Statement No. 123 (“SFAS 123”), “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” Awards under the Company's plans vest over periods ranging from three
to five years. Therefore, the cost related to stock-based employee compensation included in the
determination of net income for the years ended December 21, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is less than
that which would have been recognized if the fair value based method had been applied to ali
awards since the original effective date of SFAS 123. The following table illustrates the effect
on net income and earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 if
the fair value based method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in each




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Net Income Per Common Share (continued)

For the year ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Net income, as reported $8,130 $6,320 $3,185
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense:,

determined under the fair value method for all

awards, net of related tax benefits (1,288) (786) (582)
Pro forma net income $6,842  $5,534  $2,603

Earnings per share

Basic - as reported $1.26 $1.03 0.53
Basic - pro forma 1.06 0.90 $0.43
Diluted - as reported 1.21 0. $0.51

$1.02 $0.88 0.42

Diluted - pro forma

|

Industry Segments

The Company is active in one business segment: assembling, designing, marketing, monitoring
and supporting its personal response units. The Company maintains sales and marketing
operations in both the United States and Canada. Foreign revenues, from Canada, comprised less
than 10% of the Company’s total revenues, and tangible assets in foreign countries, Canada,
represent less than 10% of the Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2002.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credlt risk,
include cash, cash equivalents, investments, and trade receivables. The Company provides its
services primarily to hospitals and other healthcare institutions. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers and, in the case of sales-type leases the leased equipment
serves as collateral in the transactions. The Company has established guidelines relative to credit
ratings, diversification and maturities that maintain safety and liquidity. The Company has not
experienced any significant losses on these financial instruments.

Reclassification
Certam prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

i ‘Newly Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 141, “Business Combinations.” SFAS 141 requires the

. purchase method of accounting for busmess combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and
eliminates the pooling-of-interests method. The Company adopted SFAS 141 in January 2002
and it did not have a significant impact on its financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Newly Issued Accounting Standards (continued)

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was
effective January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of
goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard includes provisions for the reclassification of
certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, réassessment of the useful lives of existing
recognized intangibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill
and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of
gocdwill. The Company performed a transitional impairment test as required by SFAS 142 and
determined that there were no goodwill or intangible asset impairment losses that should be
recognized. The Company alsc determined that no reclassifications between goodwill and
intangible assets were required. The Company adopted SFAS 142 in the first quarter of 2002
which resulted in the exclusion of approximately $837,000 of goodwill amortization expense for
the year ended December 31, 2002.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS 144 supercedes FASB Statement No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of." SFAS 144
applies to all long-lived assets (including discontinued operations) and consequently amends
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting Results of Operations - Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business.” SFAS 144 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years that began after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS 144 in
the first quarter of 2002 and it did not have a significant impact on its financial statements.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146 replaces Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3 “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity.”
SFAS requires the recognition of costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are
incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. SFAS 146 is to be
applied prospectively to exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The
Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 146 wili have a significant impact on its
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

On November 25, 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), "Guarantor's
Accounting and Disclosure for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and Rescission of FASB

: Interpretation No. 34." FIN 45 clarifies the requirements of FASB Statement No. 5, "Accounting
i . for Contingencies” (FAS 5), relating to the guarantor's accounting for, and disclosure of, the
--;~7---issuance of certain types of guarantees. FIN 45 requires that, upon issuance of a guarantee, the

{
!
+
t
!
i
!
!
!

f

-4:-1--- guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation. FIN 45 is applicable to
ERE guarantees that encompass guarantees based on changes in an underlying asset, liability or equity
security, guarantees that are made on behalf of another entity's performance, certain

' indemnification agreements and indirect guarantees of the indebtedness of others. The
recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45 are effective prospectively for guarantees

- issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Newly Issued Accounting Standards (continued)

reporting periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company has made the required
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2002 and is in the
process of assessing the impact of FIN 45 recognition and measurement provisions on its
consclidated financial statements. The Company does not believe that the adoption of FIN 45
will have a significant impact on its financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change
to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this
Statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent disclosures
about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported financial results. SFAS 148 amends APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim
Financial Reporting,” to require these disclosures in interim financial information. The Company
continues to account for their stock-based employee compensation under APB Opinion 25, but
has adopted the new disclosure requirements of SFAS 148 for the year ended December 31,
2002. Additional information related to the Company’s stock option plans is detailed in Note E
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

B. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

Decemnber 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Purchased parts and assemblies $1,971 $759
Work in progress 132 42
Finished goods 3,354 3,328
Total inventories $5,457 $4,129

During 2002 the Company fuifilled its obligation to purchase certain amounts of inventory in
accordance with the termination provisions of its contract with an outside electronics product
manufacturer and alsc incurred purchases in support of its manufacturing site at its corporate
location to minimize the risk of supply interruption as it completed the transition from
outsourced manufacturing to internal manufacturing.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
C. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Equipment $31,979 $ 26,285
Furniture and fixtures ’ 2,986 873
Equipment provided to customers 17,477 16,242
Equipment under capital leases 322 5,050
Leasehold improvements » 5,982 5314
Capital in progress 1,708 925
60,454 54,689
Less: accumulated depreciation (29,036) (24,177)
Total property and equipment, net $31,418 $ 30,512

During 2002 and 2001, the Company removed from its books approximately $3.0 million and $0
respectively, of fully depreciated equipment provided to customers and computer related
equipment which is no longer in use. Accumulated depreciation amounted to $7,983,000 and
$7,645,000 on equipment provided to customers and $238,000 and $1,957,000 on equipment
under capital leases at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. In total, depreciation expense
amounted to $7,826,000, $6,216,000 and $5,198,000, for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001, and 2000, respectively.

D. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

As Lessor

The Company maintains an internally financed and operated leasing program and leases its
personal response products to customers principally under sales-type leases. As sales-type leases,
the lease payments to be received over the term of the leases are recorded as a receivable at the
inception of the new lease. Finance income attributable to the lease contracts is initially recorded
as unearned income and subsequently recognized as income under the interest method over the
term of the leases. The lease contracts are generally for five-year terms, and the residual value of
the leased equipment is considered to be nominal at the end of the lease period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
D. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The components of the net investment in sales-type leases are as follows:
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Minimum lease payments receivable . $8.824 . $9614 .
Less: Unearned interest 2,036 2,047
Allowance for doubtful accounts .. 134 356
Net investment in sales-type leases : 6,654 7,211
Less: Current portion 2,220 2,874
Long-term portion, net investment in sales-type leases $4,434 $ 4,337

Future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable sales-type leases at
December 31, 2002 are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2003 $ 3,139
2004 2,394
2005 1,708
2006 1,063
2007 433
Thereafter 87
Total future minimum lease payments $ 8,824
As Lessee

In November 1997 the Company entered into a ten-year non-cancellable operating lease for new
corporate headquarters in Framingham, Massachusetts which the Company occupied in 1999. In
November 1999 this lease was extended to fifteen years. Average annual base rental payments
under the lease approximate $941,000. In October 2002, the Company entered into a ten-year
non-cancellable operating lease to occupy up to 29,000 square feet of a second facility in
Framingham, Massachusetts for its second U.S. call center. Average annual base rental payments
under the lease approximate $246,000. These leases include scheduled base rent increases over
the term of the leases. The total amount of base rent payments is being charged to expense on the
straight-line method over the terms of the leases. The Company has recorded a deferred credit to
reflect the excess of rent expense over cash payments upon the commencement of the leases. In
addition, the Company pays a monthly allocation of each building’s operating expenses and real
estate taxes. The Company has two renewal options of five years for each lease.

---The Company also has several operating lease arrangements for facilities in other locations to

.- - support its corporate, field and Canadian operations that expire through 2012. In addition, the

Company has $everal operating lease arrangements for office equipment and has some remaining
capital leases for certain equipment that expire through 2004. Capital lease obligations are
collateralized by the related items.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) .

D. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases with initial
or remaining terms of one year or more are as follows for the years ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) Capital Leases Operating Leases
2003 - $100 $1,418
2004 K 6 1,548
2005 - 1,483
2006 - 1,382
2007 ; - 1,315
Thereafter - 7,965
Total minimum lease payments 106 $15,111
Less amount representing interest 5
Present value of net minimum lease payments 101
Less current portion 95
Long-term obligation under capital leases $6

Total rent expense under all operating leases was $1,509,000, $1,476,000 and $1,358,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Net Income Per Common Share _

In accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” the Company presents basic and diluted
EPS. Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income available toc common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted intc common stock or resulted in the issuance of
common stock that then shared in the earnings of the entity. A reconciliation of basic EPS to
diluted EPS and dual presentation on the face of the statement of income are also required.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)
Calculation of per share earnings is as follows:

(In thousands except per share figures)

002 2001 2000

Basic: - . . e ——
Net income $8,130 $6,320 $3,185
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,431 6,165 5,986
Net income per share, basic 8126 $1.03 $0.53
Diluted: _

Net income for calculating diluted earnings per share $8,130 $6,320 $3,185
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,431 6,165 5,986
Common stock equivalents 294 316 237
Total weighted average shares 6,725 6,481 6,223
Net income per share, diluted $1.21 $0.98 $0.51

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 options to purchase 143,650, 202,030,
and 484,114 shares, respectively, at an average exercise price of $24.72, $21.41 and $18.38,
respectively, have not been included in the computation of diluted net income per share as their
effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” The Company continues to recognize compensation costs using the
intrinsic value based method described in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and FASB Interpretation No. 44 (“FIN 44”),
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation.”

In July 2000, the Company’s stockholders approved the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2000
Plan”). The 2000 Plan provides that officers and key employees may be granted either
nonqualified or incentive stock options for the purchase of the Company’s common stock at the
fair market value at the date of grant. The 2000 Plan also permits the issuance of restricted stock.
The employee options granted generally become exercisable in three equal installments
beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant. Additionally, the 2000 Plan provides for
I an automatic annual grant to non-employee directors. The non-employee director options
577777 "become exercisable in three equal installments with the first installment exercisable on the date
=17 :of grant and an additional one-third becoming exercisable on each of the next two anniversary
dates. The options expire ten years from date of grant.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

In February 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company approved the 2000 Employee Stock
Option Plan (the “2000 Option Plan™). This plan was authorized primarily to enable the
Company to grant options in 2000 as part of its annual stock option program. No stockholder
approval was sought for the 2000 Option Plan.
The 15694 and 1991 Stock Option Plans provided for similar grants to officers and employees.
The employee options granted generally become exercisable at a rate of 20% per year and expire
ten years from the date of grant. :

On April 4, 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company voted to terminate the 1991, 1994 and
2000 Option Plans. Under the-terms of the 2000 Plan, if any stock option grant under any of the
aforementioned terminated plans of the Company expires or is terminated, surrendered or
canceled without having been fully exercised or is forfeited in whole or in part or results in any
common stock not being issued, unused common stock covered by such stock option grant shall
again be available for the grant of a stock option under the 2000 Plan.

Certain options, as originally granted, became exercisable only to the extent the Company
achieved specific financial goals. During 1995 these options were amended to provide for
vesting on the earlier of the six-year anniversary of the date of grant or the original vesting
schedule upon the achievement of the aforementioned financial goals. In 1998 the Company
achieved the specific financial goals as outlined in the 1994 Plan and as such fully recognized the
related compensation expense. There was no accumulated deferred compensation at December
31, 2002. Accumulated deferred compensation was $5,000 at December 31, 2001.

In July 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan in which
common stock purchase rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each _
share of the Company’s common stock outstanding as of the close of business on August 3,
1998. This plan was adopted as a means of deterring possible coercive or unfair takeover tactics
and to prevent a potential acquirer from gaining control of the Company without offering a fair
price to all of the Company’s shareholders. Unless the rights are redeemed or exchanged earlier,
o they will expire on July 24, 2008. No rights were exercised through December 31, 2002.

At December 31, 2002 shares available for future grants under all option plans were 196,974.
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E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

data):

Net income As Reported
Pro Forma

Basic net income per share As Reported
Pro Forma

Diluted net income per share As Reported
Pro Forma

The effect of applying SFAS No. 123 for the purpose of providing pro forma disclosure may not
be indicative of the effects on reported net income and net income per share for future years. The
pro forma disclosures include the effects of all awards granted after January 1, 1998 and
additional awards in future years are anticipated.

For the purpose of providing pro forma disclosures, the fair values of stock options granted were
estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively: a risk-free interest rate of
4.8%, 5.1% and 6.4%; an expected life of 7 years in all years; expected volatility of 39% in 2002
and 36% in 2001 and 2000 and no expected dividends.

2002

$8,130
$6,842

$1.26
$1.06

$1.21
$1.02

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Net income and net income per share as reported in these financial statements and on a pro forma
basis for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, as if the fair value based method
described in SFAS No. 123 had been adopted are as follows (in thousands, except per share

2001 2000

$6,320  $3,185

$5,534  $2,603
$1.03 $0.53
$0.90 $0.43
$0.98 $0.51
$0.88 $0.42




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

The following table summarizes all stock option plan activity
Jor the years ended December 31:

2002 2001 2000

Wetd. Avg. Wgtd. Avg. Wgtd. Avg.
Shares Exer. Prite Shares Exer. Price Shares Exer. Price

Outstanding
at beginning of year 856,921 $14.01 990,715 $12.63 909,523 $12.66
Granted 247,650 23.66 204,370 13.87 209,500 11.52
Exercised (139,961) 10.08 (264,308) 7.57 (58,797) 4.33
Cancelled or lapsed (42,210) 16.30 (73,856) 15.80 (69,511) 16.66
Outstanding at end of year 922,400 $17.10 856,921 $14.01 990,715 $12.63

Options exercisable

at year end 499,981 $15.19 471,383 $13.80 615,926 $11.39
Weighted average fair value

of options granted at fair

market value during the year $11.77 $6.49 $5.54




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

The following table summarizes information about stock
options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
. Number Weighted Average . Number
Range of Outstanding - - Remaining Weighted Average -~ Exércisable- * Weighted Average
Exercise Prices at 12/31/02 Contractual Life ~ Exercise Price at 12/31/02 Exercise Price

$3.00-$5.00 51,252 1.0 5 $4.70 51,252 $4.70
5.5¢-10.00 88,625 6.0 ' 8.48 61,472 8.16
11.94-14.81 264,253 7.1 13.39 146,470 13.32
15.75-20.28 178,440 - 60 17.72 134,342 17.65
20.51-26.38 339,830 8.0 23.77 106,445 23.79
$3.00-326.38 922,400 6.8 $17.10 499,981 $15.19

In July 2000, the stockholders of the Company approved the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(“ESPP”) whereby eligible employees may invest up to 10% of their base salary in shares of the
Company’s common stock. The purchase price of the shares is 85% of the fair market value of
the stock on either the commencement date or the date of purchase whichever is lower. Under
the Plan, 200,000 shares of common stock were available for purchase over ten offering pericds
through May 2005, of which approximately 133,829 shares remain available as of December 31,
2002. Shares purchased under this plan totaled 26,805, 28,599 and 10,767 in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of shares purchased under the
2000 ESPP was $22.09, $17.12 and $15.47 in 2002, 2001 and 2000.

In May 1995 the stockholders approved the 1995 ESPP, which was similar to the 2000 ESPP
noted above. The purchase price of the shares under this plan was.90% of the fair market value
of the stock on either the commencement date or the date of purchase whichever was lower.
Under the plan, 200,000 shares of common stock were available for purchase over ten offering
periods through April 2000. Shares purchased under this plan totaled 8,333 in 2000. The
weighted-average grant- date fair value of these shares purchased under the 1995 ESPP was
$12.97 in 2000. Approximately 141,483 shares remained under the 1995 ESPP when the pian
terminated in April 2000.

For the purpose of providing pro forma disclosures, the fair values of shares purchased were
estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for purchases in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively: a risk free interest rate of
. 1.21%, 2.95% and 5.9%; an expected life of 6 months in each year; expected volatility of 39%,

- 38% and 39%; and no expected dividends.

Common Stock,

In August 1999, the Company loaned $300,000 to its Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to a
secured promissory note, for the exercise of a stock option which was to expire. The note, which
bore interest at a rate of 6.77% per annum, payable annually in arrears, was due August 23, 2004
and was secured by a pledge of 16,552 shares of common stock of the Company. In April 2000,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
E. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

the Company loaned $250,000 to its Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to a collateralized
promissory note. The note, which bore interest at a rate of 6.94%, payable annually in arrears,
was due April 5, 2005 and was collateralized by 25,641 shares of common stock of the
Company. On July 15, 2002, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer repaid both notes in full.

F. INCOME TAXES
The components of income before income taxes consists of the following:
For the years ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) . 2002 2001 2000
Domestic $12,131 $9,001 $4,198
Foreign 1,419 1,222 1,106

$13,550  §$10,223 $5,304

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was computed as follows:
For the years ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Federal income taxes:
Current $2,844 $1,486 $1,242
Deferred 979 1,547 92
3,823 3,033 1,334
State income taxes:
Current _ 743 486 347
Deferred 307 (94) 15
1,050 392 362
Foreign income taxes 547 478 423

Provision for income taxes $ 5,420 $ 3,903 $2,119




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
F. INCOME TAXES (continued)

Total deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows at December 31:

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001
Total deferred tax assets $1,602 $1,436
Total deferred tax liabilities =~ 5 (7,251)  (5,799)
Net deferred tax Liability E (55,649)  (34,363)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following
significant items at December 31:

2002 2001
Current deferred tax assets:
Inventory and warranty reserves $717 $569
Restructuring reserve 61 200
Deferred compensation - 2
Deferred revenue 242 241
Accounts receivable reserves 177 136
Accrued vacation and other reserves 375 288
Net current deferred tax asset 1,602 1,436
Noncurrent deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Sales type leases 4,137) (3,810)
Restructuring reserve 32 244
Depreciation (4,353)  (4,049)
Amortization 1,207 1,816
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability (7,251) (5,799}
Net deferred tax liability (85,649)  ($4,363)

The differences between the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate and the
Company's effective tax rate are as follows:
For the years ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Provision at statutory rate $ 4,607 $ 3,476 $ 1,803
State income tax, net of federal tax effect 648 - 339 239
Goodwill - 62 - 75
Foreign rate differences 74 109 99
Other, net 91 (83) Ca)

Provision for income taxes $ 5,420 $ 3,903 $2,119




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
G. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) defined contribution savings plan covering substantially all of its
employees. The Company’s contributions, which are included in selling, general and
administrative expenses, were $602,000, $515,000 and $471,000 for the years ended December
31,2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

H. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid for income taxes amounted to $3,164,-600, $1,429,000 and $2,678,000 during 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. Interest paid was $157,000, $442,000 and $334,000 during 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

1. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES

During 2002, the Company paid in cash approximately $2.0 million for acquisitions of
distributors of the Company’s personal response products and services. The results of the
acquired businesses have been included in the Company’s consclidated financial statements from
the dates of acquisition with no material effect on the Company’s results of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2002. The Company is currently in the process of finalizing the
purchase accounting associated with these acquisitions in connection with its financial results for
the first quarter of 2003.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was
effective January 1, 2002. SFAS 142 requires, among other things, the discontinuance of
goodwill amortization. In addition, the standard includes provisions for the reclassification of
certain existing recognized intangibles as goodwill, reassessment of the useful lives of existing
recognized intangibles, reclassification of certain intangibles out of previously reported goodwill
and the identification of reporting units for purposes of assessing potential future impairments of
goodwill. SFAS 142 also required the Company to complete a transitional goodwill impairment
test within six months from the date of adoption. The Company adopted SFAS 142 in January
2002, and accordingly ceased amortizing goodwill with a net carrying value totaling
approximately $7.2 million as of the date of adoption. The Company adopted SFAS 142 in
January 2002, and as a result did not record approximately $837,000 of goodwill amortization
expense for the year ended December 31, 2002.

The Company performed a transitional impairment test as required by SFAS 142 and determined
that there were no goodwill or intangible asset impairment losses that should be recognized. The
Company alsc determined that no reclassifications between goodwill and intangible assets were
required. Information pertaining to intangible assets and goodwill and the effects of adopting
SFAS 142 are presented below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES (continued)

Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, acquired intangible assets were related to provider agreements
entered into with customers for conversion to services provided by the Company:

-(Dollars in thousands) ~ L e

" December 31, December 31,

2002 2001
Gross carrying amount §13,774 $11,032
Less: accumulated amortization (6,409) (4,417)
Net book value $ 7,365 $ 6,615

All of the Company’s acquired intangible assets, other than goodwiil, are subject to amortization.
Amortization expense for acquired intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2002 and
2001 was approximately $2,139,000 and $2,099,000 respectively.

Based on the Company’s intangible assets currently owned, estimated amortization expense for
the succeeding five years is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2003 $2,120
2004 1,734
2005 : 819
2006 322

2007 169
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NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cbmimmd)
I. GOCDWILL AND INTANGIBLES (continued)

Goodwill
The following information reflects pro forma adjustments to exclude goodwill amortization
expense and related tax effects:

(Dollars in thousands) For the year ended December 31,
S S : - 2002 2001 - - 2000
Net income:

Reported net income $8,130 $6,320 $3,185

b

Add back: goodwill amortization, net of taxes -- 431 391
Adjusted net income $8,130 $6,751 $3,576
Basic earnings per share:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 6,431 6,165 5,986
Reported net income $1.26 $1.03 $0.53
Add back: goodwill amortization, net of taxes - 0.07 0.07
Adjusted net income $1.26 $1.10 $0.60
Diluted earnings per share:
Total weighted average shares 6,725 6,481 6,223
Reported net income $1.21 $0.98 $0.51
Add back: goodwill amortization, net of taxes -- 0.07 .06
Adjusted net income $1.21 $1.05 $0.57

During 2002, the Company recorded approximately $0.7 million of intangible assets related to
provider agreements whereby the Company agrees to pay the customer a fee for the use of its
referral sources and agrees to provide monitoring and/or business support services to the
customer under a LMS or BMS program in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The
Company amortizes the acquisition costs over the life of the agreements, which is typically five
years. The Company is currently in the process of finalizing the purchase accounting associated
with the acquisitions of distributors of its personal response products and has included
approximately $1.5 million in intangible assets at December 31, 2002.

Under a provider agreement to convert to a LMS program, the customer agrees to use the Lifeline
call center as its provider of monitoring services during the term of the Agreement. The
Company agrees to provide personal response monitoring services to the customer’s subscribers
through the Lifeline call center, and the customer agrees to continue to manage referrals,
inquiries, service order intake, service installation, and ongoing customer service. The customer
continues to purchase home communicators from the Company. The Company charges the
customer a monthly fee per subscriber for the monitoring services provided. The sale of home
communicators fo the customer is not tied to the monitoring agreement as the customer makes
the determiniation when to purchase home communicators. The customer typically purchases
home communicators to place in its cwn inventory and then disperses the home communicators
as it acquires subscribers who need the service. The customer is under no contract that would
require it to purchase home communicators. The customer bills its subscribers for the home
communicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring services provided
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
I. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES {continued)
by the Company.

Under an agreement with the Company to convert to a BMS program, the customer agrees to use
Lifeline as its provider of monitoring services and business suppoit services during the term of
the agréement. The Company agrees to handle day-to-day administrative tasks for the Lifeline
service including managing referrals, inquiries, service order intake, service installation, ongoing
customer service and billing to support the needs ofithe customer. The Company directly
provides its customer’s subscribers with the Lifeline service, which includes monitoring and the
use of Company-owned home communicators for a single fee, and the Company bills the
subscriber on a monthly basis for this service.

Under an agreement to convert to a PSF program, the customer agrees to use the Lifeline call
center as its provider of monitoring services during the term of the Agreement. The Company
agrees to provide personal response monitoring services to the customer’s subscribers through
the Lifeline call center, and the customer agrees to continue to manage referrals, inquiries,
service order intake, service installation, and ongeoing customer service. Rather than purchasing
home communicators, the customer orders home communicators as needed and pays Lifeline a
monthly rental for communicators in their possession. The customer bills the subscriber for the
home communicators it has placed in the subscriber’s home and for the monitoring services
provided by the Company. The Company charges the customer a monthly per-subscriber fee for
the monitoring service that the Company is providing.

In April 2001, the Company acquired certain assets formerly owned by SOS Industries, Inc. a
personal response service provider based in New Smyrna Beach, Florida with subscribers located
in 37 states. The purchase price was $3.8 million. The acquisition was accounted for as a
purchase transaction, and the resulting goodwill was amortized over an estimated life of 10 years
through December 31, 2001. The results of the acquired business are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition and did not have a material impact
on 2001 operating results.

The proforma effect of the aforementioned acquisition did not have a material impact on results
of operaticns in the respective year of acquisition.

In accordance with the adoption of SFAS 142 discussed in Footnote A above, the Company
discontinued the amortization of goodwill resulting from the aforementioned acquisition
effective January 1, 2002. The Company continues to amortize the intangible assets related to
the aforementioned provider agreements.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
J. RESTRUCTURING AND NON RECURRING CHARGES

In September 2000, the Company recorded a pre-tax non-recurring charge of approximately $2.7
million for costs it expected to incur to address erroneous low-battery signals in some of its
personal help buttons. Included in the non-recurring charge were anticipated material and mailing
costs for exchanging buttons, providing hospital programs with higher inventory levels for the
planned swap, and the cost of installer visits to subscriber homes to replace the buttons.

At December 31, 2002, accrued restructuring aﬁd other non-recurring charges of nearly $310,000
represented the remaining unutilized costs associated with the anticipated cost of addressing
erroneous low-battery signals in personal help buttons.

The following is a roli-forward of accrued restructuring and non-recurring charges for the year
ended December 31, 2002:

(In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2001 $1,123
Less: Amounts utilized (813)
Balance at December 31, 2002 $310

The Company expects to utilize the remaining accrued restructuring balance during 2003 and
believes that this balance should be sufficient to cover the remaining expenditures associated
with this issue.

K. LONG TERM DEBT -

In August 2002, the Company entered into a $15.0 million Revolving Credit Agreement. The
agreement has two components, the first of which is the ability to obtain a Revolving Credit Loan
with an interest rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The second
component is the ability to cbtain a Revolving Credit Loan with an interest rate based on the
lender’s prime interest rate. The Company has the option to elect to convert any outstanding
Revolving Credit Loan to a Revolving Credit Loan of the other type. The agreement contains
several covenants, including the Company maintaining certain levels of financial performance.
These financial covenants include a requirement for a current ratio of at least 1.5 to 1.0 and an
operating cash flow to total debt service ratio of no less than 1.75 to 1.0. In addition, there are
certain negative covenants that include restrictions on the disposition of the Company’s assets,
restrictions on the Company’s capacity to obtain additional debt financing, and restrictions on its
investment portfolio. The agreement also requires the Company to pay a commitment fee
calculated at the rate of one quarter of one percent (1/4%) per annum on the average daily
amount during each calendar quarter or portion thereof until the Revolving Credit Loan Maturity
Date by which the Total Commitment minus the sum of the Maximum Drawing Amount and all
Unpaid Reimbursement Obligations exceeds the outstanding amount of Revolving Credit Loans
during such calendar quarter. This Revolving Credit Agreement matures in August 2005 and as
of December 31, 2002 the Company did not have any debt outstanding under this line.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
L. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is active in one business segment: designing, marketing, monitoring and
supporting its personal response units. The Company maintains sales and marketing operations
in both the United States and Canada.

Geographic Segment Data

Net revenues to external customers are based on the location of the customer. Geographic
information as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and for the years then ended is presented as
tollows:

(Dollars in 2002 2001 2000
thousands)
Net Sales:
United States $96,522 $89,296 $75,199
Canada 8,486 7,264 6,290
$105,008 $96,560 $81,489
Net Income:
United States $7,258 $5,576 $2,502
Canada 872 744 683
$8,130 $6,320 $3,185
Total Assets:
United States $77,317 $69.495 $58,725
Canada 6,343 7,494 5,803

$83,660 $76,989 $64,528

M. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITTMENTS

The Company has recently been audited by Revenue Canada asserting deficiencies in goods and
services tax and sales tax for the Company's 1993 to 1999 tax years. On March 26, 2002, the
Company received a propesed tax assessment (which included penalties and interest) of
CANS$1,050,000 (approximately US$668,000 based on current exchange rates at December 31,
2002). In October 2002, the Company received a reduced assessment of CAN$523,000
(approximately US$333,000 based on current exchange rates at December 31, 2002), which the
Company paid. Approximately CAN$94,000 (approximately US$62,000 based on current
exchange rates at February 28, 2003) of this assessment has been recovered from customers. The
Company has filed an objection to the re-assessment that may result in a further reduction.
However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in its objection.

N. CONTINGENCIES

- The Company is subject to complaints, claims and litigation, which have arisen in the normal
course of business. Management is not aware of any significant claims that would have a
. material adverse effect on the financial position of the Company.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

None.
PART IIL
ITEM 10.  Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant C e e

The information under the heading “Blection of Directors” in the Company’s definitive proxy
material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
Information concerning officers of the Company appears in Part [ of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

ITEM 11.  Executive Compensation

The information under the heading “Executive Compensation,” excluding the “Compensation
Committee Report on Executive Compensation” and the Stock Price Performance Graph in the
Company’s definitive proxy material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders, is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

(a) Security ownership of certain beneficial owners: The information under the
heading “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock” in the Company’s definitive
proxy material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated herein
by reference.

(b) Security ownership of management: The information under the heading -
“Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock” in the Company’s definitive proxy
material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated herein by
reference.

(©) Changes in control: None known.

(d Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans: The
information under the heading “Amendment of 2000 Stock Incentive Plan —
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity ComCpensation Plans” in the
Company’s definitive proxy material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders
is incorporated herein by reference. '

ITEM 13. , Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information under the heading “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” in the

Company’s definitive proxy material for its 2003 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated
herein by reference.
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ITEM 14. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

1. Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Based on their evaluation of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14(c) and 15d-14{c)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of a date within 90 days of the filing date of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer
have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and are operating in an effective manner.

2. Changes in internal controls. There were no significant changes in the
Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls
subsequent to the date of their most recent evaluation.

PART IV
ITEM 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consclidated financial statements of Lifeline Systems, Inc. and the report
of independent accountants relating thereto, are set forth in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K on the pages indicated.

Pages

Report of Independent Accountants 22
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 23
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income _
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 _ 24
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 25
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years

ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 26
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 27-49

(2)(2) Financial Statement Scheduie

The following financial statement schedule of Lifeline Systems, Inc. is filed herewith
and included in ITEM 15 (a)(2) on the pages indicated below.

Pages
Schedu]le II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 60
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All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, not required, or because
the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The Company filed no reports on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange
Commission during the quarter ended December 31, 2002.

(¢) = Exhibits

The Exhibits which are filed with this Report or which are incorporated herein by
reference are set forth in the Exhibit Index, which appears on pages 56 through 59 hereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC.

March 26, 2003 S By:  /s/ Ronald Feinstein

Date B Ronald Feinstein

"? Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on
the dates indicated. '

Signature Capacity Date

/s/ L. Dennis Shapiro Chairman of the Board March 26, 2003
L. Dennis Shapiro

/s/ Ronald Feinstein Chief Executive Officer, March 26, 2003
Ronald Feinstein President and Director (Principal

Executive Officer)

/s/ Dennis M. Hurley Senior Vice President of Finance March 26, 2003
Dennis M. Hurley (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer)
/s/ Everett N. Baldwin Director . March 26, 2003
Everett N. Baldwin
/s/ Joseph E. Kasputys Director March 26, 2003
Joseph E. Kasputys
/s/ Carolyn C. Roberts Director March 26, 2003
Carolyn C. Roberts
/s/ Gordon C. Vinevard Director March 26, 2003
Gordon C. Vineyard
/s/ S. Ward Casscells Director March 26, 2603
S. Ward Casscells
/s/ ‘[E}llen Feingold . ' Director March 26, 2003
Ellen Feingold
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Ronald Feinstein, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lifeline Systems, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the pericd covered by this annual report; S

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report cur conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

Dated: March 26, 2003 /s/ Ronald Feinstein
Ronald Feinstein
Chief Executive Officer, President
and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Dennis M. Hurley, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lifeline Systems, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mlsleadmg with
respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the pericds
presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and [ are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure contrels and procedures to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures
as of a date within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the
“Evaluation Date”); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation
Date,

S. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on cur most recent
evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

d. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which
could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material
weaknesses in internal controls; and

e. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses.

Dated: March?26, 2003 /s/ Dennis M. Hurley
Dennis M. Hurley
Senior Vice President of Finance (Principal
Financial and Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following designated exhibits are, as indicated below, either filed herewith or have
heretofore been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 and are referred to and incorporated herein by
reference to such filings.

Exhibit No. Exhibit SEC Decument Reference
Exhibit 3. Articles of Incorporaﬁon and By-Laws - N -
3.1 Articles of Organization of Lifeliﬁé‘; Systems, Inc., 2-84060 Exhibit 3.1
as amended.
3.2 Articles of Amendment of Lifeline Systems, Inc. 1987 10K Exhibit 3.4
33 Restated By-Laws of Lifeline Systems, Inc. 1990 10K Exhibit 3.4
3.4 Amended and Restated By-laws 10Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002, Exhibit 3.1
Exhibit 4. Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders
4.1 Specimen Stock Certificate. 2-84060 Exhibit 4.1
4.2 Shareholder Rights Plan dated July 24, 1998 8-K dated August 5, 1998
43 Amendment Number 1 to Shareholder 10Q for the quarter ended
Rights Plan dated October 18, 1998 September 30, 1998 Exhibit 4.3
4.4 Amendment No. 2 to Shareholder Rights 8-K dated July 12, 2002
Plan dated as of June 30, 2002 '
4.5 Amendment No. 3 to Shareholder Rights
Plan dated as of August 19,2002 8-K dated August 21, 2002
Exhibit 10, Material Contracts
10.01 Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan. 2-84060 Exhibit 10.21
10.02 Registrant’s 1991 Stock Option Plan. 1990 10K Exhibit 10.37
10.03 Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement 1992 10K Exhibit 10.32
. for Registrant’s 1991 Stock Option Plan.
10.04 Form of Special Non-statutory Stock Option Agréérﬂenf 1992 10K Exhibit 10.33 |

for Registrant’s 1991 Stock Option Plan.

-56-




Exhibit No.

Exhibit

10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08
16.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

1017

10.18

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement
dated August 31, 1986 and Consent to
Assignment of Lease between the Registrant
and Tierrasanta 234 dated September 9, 1993.

Letter Agreement between Ronald Feinstein
and the Registrant dated March 4, 1994,

Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement between
Ronald Feinstein and the Regist'régnt dated
February 11, 1994, E

Registrant’s 1994 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement
for Registrant’s 1994 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Special Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement
for Registrant’s 1994 Stock Option Plan.

Master Lease Agreement between Registrant and
U.S. Leasing Corporation

Form of the Non-statutory Stock Option
Agreement to Registrant’s 1991 Stock
Option Plan

Form of the Non-statutory Stock Option
Agreement to Registrant’s 1994 Stock
Option Plan

Amended Employment Agreement between
Ronald Feinstein and the Registrant,
dated June 14, 1996

Amendment to Registrant’s 1951
Stock Option Plan

Amendment to Registrant’s 1994
Stock Option Plan

Lease Agreement between the registrant and
Bishop/Clark Associates Limited Partnership
.. dated November 11, 1997

SEC Document Reference
1993 10K Exhibit 10.44

1693 10K Exhibit 10.45

1993 10K Exhibit 10.46

1994 10K Exhibit 10.48
1694 10K Exhibit 10.49

1994 10K Exhibit 10.50

1994 10K Exhibit 10.52

1995 10K Exhibit 10.33

1995 10K Exhibit 10.34

10Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1996, Exhibit 10.60

1996 10K Exhibit 10.41

1696 10K Exhibit 10.42

1997 10K Exhibit 10.44

Offer to Lease between CareTel, Inc. and Graduate Holdings

Limited and Samuel Sarick Limited
dated September 1, 1994
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Exhibit No.

Exhibit

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Form of Change in Control Agreement for
for the following Named Executives:
Mr. Richard Reich, Mr. Thomas Loper,
Mr. Dennis Hurley, Mr. John Gugliotta

First amendment to lease agreement

between Registrant and Bishop/Clark Associates

Limited Partnership dated June 30, 1998
Lease agreement between the Regiétrant and
Triangle Realty Trust dated August, 1998

Master Lease Agreement between the
Registrant and Andover Capital Group
dated March 11, 1999

The supply agreement between the Ademco Group
a division of Honeywell International, Inc.,
formerly the Pittway Corporation and the
Registrant dated December 29, 1999

Second amendment to lease agreement between
Registrant and Bishop/Clark Associates
Limited Partnership dated November 18, 1999

Secured Promissory Note between Ronald
Feinstein and the Registrant, dated April 5, 2000

Security and Pledge Agreement between Ronald
Feinstein and the Registrant, dated April 5, 2000

Amended Employment Agreement
between Leonard Wechsler and
Lifeline Systems, Canada, dated July 2000

Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan

Registrant’s 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan
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SEC Document Reference

1997 10K Exhibit 10.49

+ 10Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1998 Exhibit 10.52

10Q for the quarter ended

September 30, 1998 Exhibit 10.53

10Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1999 Exhibit 10.60

1999 10-K Exhibit 10.65

1699 10-K Exhibit 10.67

10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2000 Exhibit 10.69

10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2000 Exhibit 16.70

10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2000 Exhibit 10.71
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2000 Exhibit 10.72

10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2000 Exhibit 10.73




Exhibit No. Exhibit SEC Document Reference
10.30 Tax Increment Financing Agreement between _ 2000 10-K Exhibit 10.74
Registrant and Town of Framingham dated
October 25, 2000

10.31 Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2002, among the
Registrant and (a) ValueAct Capital Partners, L.P.,
(b) ValueAct Capital Partners II, L.P.,
(c) ValueAct Capital International, Ltd., ——
(d) VA Partners, L.L. C., (e) Jeffrey W. Uben,

(f) George F. Hammel, Jr. and (g) Peter H. Kamin 8-K dated July 12, 2002
10.32 Second Amendment to Revolving
Credit Agreement dated June 28, 2002 10-Q for the quarter ended
- June 30, 2002 Exhibit 10.02
10.34 Third Amendment to Revolving Credit
Agreement dated July 23, 2002 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002 Exhibit 10.03
10.33 Lease Agreement between Registrant and
Clark’s Hill, LLC dated June 21, 2002 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2002 Exhibit 10.04
10.34 Revolving Credit Agreement between Registrant
and Citizens Bank of Massachusetts dated
August 28, 2002 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2002 Exhibit 10.1
Filed herewith:
10.35 Amended Employment Agreement between
Leonard Wechsler and Lifeline Systems Canada
dated March 2003.

Exhibit 21. Subsidiaries.
Filed herewith:

211 Subsidiaries of Lifeline Systems, Inc.

Exhibit 23. Consents of Experts and Counsel.

Filed herewith:
ST 231 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
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LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC.
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000
(Dollars in thousands)

»

“Additions
Balance at  Charged to Balance at
Description ~ Beginning Costs & End of
- of Year Expenses  Deductions'’ Year
2002
Allowance for doubtful
receivables:
Trade accounts receivable $442 $174 $287 $329
Lease receivables 356 24 246 134
Total $798 $198 $533 $463
2001
Allowance for doubtful
receivables:
Trade accounts receivable $449 $221 $228 $442
Lease receivables 207 159 10 356
Total $656 $380 $238 $798
2000
Allowance for doubtful
receivables:
Trade accounts receivable $706 $16 $273 $449
Lease receivables 147 60 - 207
Total $853 $76 $273 $656

' Uncollectible accounts and adjustments.




EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF LIFELINE SYSTEMS, INC.
Lifeline Systems Securities Corporation
111 Lawrence Street - T -
Framingham, Massachusetts 01702-8156
Incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Lifeline Systems Canada, Inc.
95 Barber Greene Road :
North York, Ontaric, Canada M3C 3E9

Incorporated in the Province of Ontario, Canada

Lifeline Systems Export, Inc.
The Financiail Services Centre
Bishops Court Hill

St. Michael, Barbados

Incorporated in the Country of Barbados




EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
We hereby consent to the incorporaticn by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8

(Nos. 33-58632 and 333-42546) of Lifeline Systems, Inc. of our report dated February 10, 2003,
relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedule, which appears in this Form

10-K. 5

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
March 26, 2003




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, each of the uhdersigned certifies that this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained
in this report fairly presents, in:all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of Lifeline Systems, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 506 has been provided to
Lifeline Systems, Inc. and will be retained by Lifeline Systems, Inc. and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

/s/ Ronald Feinstein
Dated: March 26, 2003 Ronald Feinstein
Chief Executive Cfficer, President
and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Dennis M. Hurley

Dated: March 26, 2003 Dennis M. Hurley
Senior Vice President of Finance and
Administration, Principal Financial
and Accounting Officer




DIRECTORS

L. Dennis Shapiro
Chairman of the Board
Lifeline Systems, Inc.

Ronald Feinstein
President and
. Chief Executive Officer
| Lifeline Systems, Inc.

j Everett N. Baldwin

| Retired President and

k Chief Executive Officer
f Welch Foods, Inc.

f S. Ward Casscells, III, MD

| Vice President for Biotechnology and

| Professor of Public Health

i University of Texas Science Center at Houston

f Clien Feingold

| President, Jewish Community Housing

# for the Elderly-Boston

g Joseph E. Kasputys, PhD

E Chairman and CEO
Global Insight, Inc.
Carolyn C. Roberts
Chief Executive Officer, Emerita
Copley Health Systems, Inc.

| Gordon C. Vineyard, MD

& Associate Clinical Professor of Surgery
““““ l Harvard Medical School

g CFFICERS
“““““ L. Dennis Shapiro
Chairman of the Board

Ronald Feinstein
| President and Chief Executive Officer

| Ellen R. Berezin
& Vice President, Human Resources

§ Mark G. Beucler
® Vice President, Finance and
t Corporate Controller

j Edward M. Bolesky
Senior Vice President, Customer Care

Dennis M. Hurley
' Senior Vice President, Finance,
il Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

| Richard M. Reich
® Senior Vice President,
§ Chief Information Officer

—: Donald G. Strange
i Senior Vice President, Sales

8 Lconard E. Wechsler
President, Lifeline Systems Canada
¥ and Vice President

J Jeffrey A. Stein
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Corporate Headquarters
Lifeline Systems, Inc.
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Framingham, MA 01702-8156
508-988-1000

www lifelinesys.com

Lifeline Systems Canada, Inc.

95 Barber Greene Road, Suite 105
Toronto, ON M3C 3E9
1-800-387-8120
www.lifelinecanada.com

TRANSFER AGENT

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, NJ 07016-3572
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One International Place
Boston, MA 02110

CORPORATE COUNSEL
Hale and Dorr LLP

60 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

STOCXK SYMBCL
NASDAQ: LIFE

TRADEMARKS

Lifeline and AutoLearn are registered
trademarks of Lifeline Systems, Inc.

Lifeline Cenfral, CarePartner,

CarePartners Connect, CarePartners Online,
CareMaster, CommuniCator Plus;

InstantFax, PROMline, Slimline,

Classic Pendant, TelAssure and VoiceAssist

are trademarks of Lifeline Systems, Inc.
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Lifeline Systems, Inc.

111 Lawrence Street
Framingham, MA 017028156
Telephone: 5(8-988-1000

Fax: 508-988-1386
wwwilifelinesys.com

Lifeline Systems Canada, Inc. ‘
95 Barber Greene Road, Suite 105
Toronto, ON M3C 3E9

Canada

Telephone: 1-800-387-8120

Fax: 416-445-5402
www.lifelinecamada.com

Lifeline has relationships
with over 2,500
commumnity hospitals




